Public Document Pack

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Wednesday 7 July 2021

Tel: 01993 861522
e-mail democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are summoned to a meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held
in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney on Thursday, 15 July 2021 at 2.00
pm.

Giles Hughes
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillors: Councillor Alaa Al-Yousuf (Chairman), Councillor Andrew Coles (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Mike Cahill, Councillor Owen Collins, Councillor Rupert Dent, Councillor Harry
Eaglestone, Councillor Ted Fenton, Councillor Andy Goodwin, Councillor Liz Leffman, Councillor
Martin McBride, Councillor Alex Postan, Councillor Carl Rylett, Councillor Harry St John and
Councillor Ben Woodruff

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and
Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.
Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Committee Administrator know prior to the start of the meeting.

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 INB
www.westoxon.E5@GETAl: 01993 861000



http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/

AGENDA

Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 3 - 22)
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021.

Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest from Councillors relating to items to be
considered at the meeting, in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s Local
Code of Conduct, and any from Officers.

Participation of the Public

Purpose:
To receive any submissions from members of the public, in accordance with the

Council’s Rules of Procedure.

Council Priorities and Service Performance Report 2020-21 - Quarter Four (Pages 23 -
80)

Purpose
This report provides details of service performance during Q4.

Recommendation
That the Committee reviews, and challenges as appropriate, performance for 2020-21

Q4.

Committee Work Programme 2020/2021 (Pages 81 - 86)

Purpose:

To provide the Committee with an updated Work Programme for 2020/2021.
Recommendation:

That the Committee notes the work programme, provides comment where needed and
makes amendments where required.

Cabinet Work Programme (Pages 87 - 90)

Purpose:

To give the Committee the opportunity to comment on the Cabinet Work Programme
published on 22 September 2020.

Recommendation:

That the Committee decides whether to express a view to the Cabinet on relevant
issues in its Work Programme.

Members' Questions

Purpose:
To receive questions from Members relating to the work of the Environment Overview

and Scrutiny Committee. In order to ensure that appropriate information is to hand at
the meeting, Members may wish to give notice of any questions through the Committee
Officer.

Recommendation:

That Members’ questions be dealt with as appropriate.

Page 2



Agenda Item

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Record of Decisions of the meeting of the
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at 2.00 pm on Thursday, 10 June 202|

PRESENT

Councillors: Councillor Alaa Al-Yousuf (Chairman), Councillor Andrew Coles (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Mike Cahill, Councillor Owen Collins, Councillor Rupert Dent, Councillor Harry
Eaglestone, Councillor Ted Fenton, Councillor Andy Goodwin, Councillor Liz Leffman,
Councillor Martin McBride, Councillor Alex Postan, Councillor Carl Rylett and Councillor
Harry St John

Officers: Laurence King (Shared Principal Engineer) and Bill Oddy (Group Manager -
Commercial Development)

Minutes of Previous meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2021 were approved and signed by the Chairman
as a correct record.

Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Woodruff.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest received.

Participation of the Public

The following members of the public addressed the Committee in relation to Agenda Item 5 —
OCC Local Lead Flood Authority Update.

William Wareing — resident of Woodford Mill, Witney and on behalf of The Witney Flood
Mitigation Group

Tony Stark — resident of Woodford Mill, Witney and a founder member of The Witney Flood
Mitigation Group

Kay Jerred — resident of Riverside Gardens, Witney and representing 50 elderly and vulnerable
residents.

Copies of their submissions are attached as an appendix to these minutes.

In response to a question from Councillor Coles, Mr Wareing advised that the representatives
of the Environment Agency had made it clear that there were no plans for flood risk or
mitigation measures for Witney.

Following a question from Councillor Postan, Mr Wareing confirmed who the group had
reached out to and how they had tried to include people in decision making positions.

In response to a question from Councillor Fenton, Mr Stark advised of the different occasions
that flooding had occurred.

Councillor Coles thanked Ms Jerrad for attending and expressed his sympathy for the situation
she and other residents had found themselves in. Ms Jerrad confirmed that there did not
appear to be a register of the most vulnerable properties and / or residents. Officers
confirmed that this could be included in Community Emergency Plans and shared with the Fire
Service.

Page 3



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
10/June2021|

Councillor Graham also expressed his gratitude to the speakers for attending the meeting and
impressed by their speeches, although the content had been upsetting to hear.

OCC Local Lead Flood Authority - Update

Mr Bill Cotton, Corporate Director for Environment and Place at Oxfordshire County
Council addressed the meeting in relation to the council’s role as Local Lead Flood Authority.

He provided an overview of the responsibilities which he acknowledged were complicated;
outlined the management roles and responsibilities for Oxfordshire and the Local Lead Flood
Authority; advised how the OCC worked in partnership on the Local Management Strategy
and were a statutory consultee on planning applications.

Members were provided with an explanation of the agreement held with District Councils to
manage water courses and work with riparian owners to remind them of their responsibilities.

Mr Cotton advised that it was the County Council’s responsibility to record and investigate
flood incidents (25 investigations in West Oxfordshire) and work with the fire brigade, local
groups and councillors when an incident occurred. He admitted that the process had been
tested at Christmas but reminded the meeting that due to Climate Change and flood risk,
these incidents would always occur. Mr Cotton also referred to the Information and Support
Toolkit and encouraged Members to let him know if these needed improvement.

Questions and comments from Councillors included:

Councillor Postan — the difficulties experienced if a river was cleared upstream, resulting in
ground water, surge and run off. He also referred to de-silting, tree planting, changes in
agricultural methods and traffic measures.

Councillor Leffman queried what could be done to improve the relationship between the
District and County Councils regarding planning applications; how to enforce clearing of

watercourses by landowners; the responsibility for ditches and grips on Highway land; and
drainage clearance operating on a four year cycle but in reality was closer to 8 to 9 years.

Councillor St John asked for clarification on the Section |9 report and why it had not yet been
completed; the flood alert not being activated early enough; and the responsibility of the
Environment Agency in this situation.

The Council’s Flooding Officer, Laurence King advised members that the SI9 report was a
County Council responsibility to produce. In response, Mr Cotton advised that he would
enquire as to the status of the S19 report and get back to officers.

Councillor Coles raised the issue that a months rain had fallen in one afternoon and proposed
the areas likely to be affected would have been known 24 to 36 hours earlier; he noted that
sandbags were not ready on that occasion and preparations not made; he argued that despite
the Climate Emergency, basic maintenance was not being carried out. He concluded by asking
Mr Cotton how closely the County Council had worked with the relevant groups and
authorities.

In response, Mr Cotton agreed to visit the ‘pinch points’ in person and meet the residents
affected.

Members also raised a number of other areas for discussion, including building formal
relationships with residents, the Local Resilience Forum and Parish Councils; and planning and
building on known flood plains and appearing to disregard local knowledge with little
recognition of community awareness.

Page 4



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
10/June2021|

In response, officers clarified the criteria for when a planning application was submitted to the
County Council for comment. The Group Manager — Commercial Development asked if the
20+ flooding investigations in West Oxfordshire could be shared and reiterated the need to
encourage town and parish councils to create their own community plans. He suggested that
the Committee could ask to see the Section 19 report once it was available and it was agreed
that this would be added to the Work Programme.

In summing up, Mr Cotton advised that the five key actions he would take away with him
were:

To be clear about the County’s responsibilities;

To help strengthen partnership working;

To help community groups to build resilience;

He agreed to meet with local residents and visit areas of flooding concern; and

To chase up the status of the SI19 report and forward it to the Committee for information.

The Committee agreed that a representative from the Environment Agency should be invited
to a future meeting and look into the existing powers that the Council had for encouraging
clearance of water courses and ditches.

In response to a query from Councillor Rylett, Mr Cotton advised that he would find out
about the report from Wild Oxfordshire and the Environment Agency regarding Natural
Flood Management and would share it with Members.

The Chairman thanked Mr Cotton for attending and answering questions from the
Committee.

Call-In of Cabinet Decision; Allocation of Parking Funds

The Committee considered the report relating to the Call In of the Cabinet decision on the
Allocation of Parking Funds, considered at 21 April 2021 meeting.

The decision had been called in by Councillors Cooper, Leffman Graham and Poskitt.

Councillor Cooper addressed the meeting and felt there had been a lack of definition around
the decision, queried how the amounts had been arrived at and asked if Publica had the
resources to take on the report. He asked how the expenditure would be monitored and
asked if the Council would be adopting the suggestions put forward by Parish and/or Town
Councils.

In response, Councillor MacRae advised that when the District Council initially agreed to
undertake some work on on-street parking issues, due to a lack of capacity at OCC, it was
envisaged the work would take just a few months for each of the major settlements.
However, the project within Woodstock had taken a very considerable amount of time,
principally, because of the need to engage with so many groups and the high number of
contacts from within the Community.

In addition, the Covid pandemic saw a significant number of members of staff redeployed from
their ‘normal’ duties to work on the Council’s Covid response.

As with the study conducted in Corn Street/Church Green Witney, the results of the
Woodstock parking study were reported to OCC for them to consider and take forward any
changes they considered appropriate, including support for a one-way system around ‘the
triangle’ and a restriction on large vehicles accessing the town centre. He reminded

Page 5



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
10/June2021|

Councillor Cooper that the district authority was not the Highway authority and could not
therefore make decisions on changes to on-street parking regulations. The district council did
not have the capacity to provide continued support to the project, as focus needed to be
directed to other parking service management and improvement matters. The County
Council would therefore need to take this matter forward.

In response to the comment ‘... due to the lack of information on the change in capacity within
PUBLICA to undertake this task.” Councillor MacRae advised that the report was published in
his name and he took full responsibility for its content. He wascontent to publish it and did
not think it was appropriate to cast blame on members of staff in this matter.

Moving to the second point raised, ‘Undefined terms’ Councillor MacRae explained that the
funding was provided for the following purposes:

e Review/study/collection of data on parking needs and issues, so that the information
could be used to request changes to parking provision or restrictions, from the
appropriate authority, where needed.

e Contribution towards the cost of any changes agreed by the appropriate authority (i.e.,
towards line marking, subject to OCC Highways agreement)

As suggested by ClIr Enright at the Cabinet meeting, and agreed by Councillor MacRae,
Councils receiving this funding would be asked to report back to WODC a breakdown of
what had been spent and what had been achieved as a result. Councillor MacRae also
proposed that a requirement be included that the funds were to be used as directed within a
two-year timespan with outcomes to be focused on improving parking, increasing parking
provision or improving parking safety.

Following the statement from Councillor MacRae, Councillor Leffman advised she was still
uncertain as to what the town or parish councils would be able to do with the money and
queried if this was the best use of Council resources.

It was agreed that the criteria for spending the money needed to be clearly communicated
with the parish and town councils and any letter would also advise that they had two years in
which to spend the funds on ‘parking related’ activities.

It was therefore proposed and duly seconded that the Call In would not be supported and
officers would add a ‘sunset’ clause of two years to the communication to councils.

Resolved that the Call in is not supported.

Committee Work Programme 2021/22
The Committee was provided with an update on its work programme for 2020/21.

Members noted that the following additions would be included on the work programme for
future meetings:

Representative to be invited from the Environment Agency; and
Riparian Ownership — Land Management Strategy update.

Resolved that the work programme be agreed subject to the additions above.

Page 6



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
10/June2021|
Cabinet Work Programme

The Committee considered the report from Democratic Services which gave Members the
opportunity to comment on the Cabinet Work Programme published on 18 May 2021.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Members' Questions

Councillor Leffman asked the following question relating to parking enforcement in Charlbury:

“This relates to an agreement that was made some years ago with residents on Church Lane
and Dyers Hill about parking their cars. It is a complicated story, but essentially, parking is
restricted for one hour per day in order to discourage people from parking for free and then
walking to the station. However it was recognised that this made it difficult for residents to
park and so it was agreed that if residents gave their car registrations to WODC they would
not be ticketed. we have had a couple of cases of residents getting tickets over the years but
in general this has been respected. Earlier this week some residents received an email telling
them that from next Monday this agreement would be suspended. There was no consultation,
councillors were not informed of the decision, and apparently not all residents were informed
either. | wrote to Maria Wheatley who sent me an email yesterday saying she would come
back to me later in the day about this but so far | have not heard anything.

My main concern is that once again, decisions that make a big difference to residents are being
taken without any notice, without consultation and without councillors being asked for their
views.”

In response, the Group Manager responsible for Commercial Development stated there were
two locations in the District where a similar traffic regulation order was in place — Charlbury
and Long Hanborough railway stations. These were put in place to deal with on street parking
issues approximately ten to |5 years ago and, similar to other areas of West Oxfordshire,
would benefit from being reviewed by Oxfordshire County Council.

Mr Oddy stated that he was not aware of why residents had received notice about a local
parking agreement but he would liaise with the Parking Services Manager and ask her to
respond to Councillor Leffman.

Councillor Collins asked the following question regarding Bring Sites:

“I have seen an email sent to Witney Town Council regarding the Bring Sites. | do not feel
that this was written in the spirit of what the Committee suggested and rather than refer to
consultation, appeared to provide costs for taking over the running of the site implying the
decision was a foregone conclusion. | would like to express the disappointment felt by Witney
Town Council.”

In response, Mr Oddy apologised on behalf of the author of the email. He had hoped the
communication would help officers to understand the impact that removing the sites had and
costs had been included to try to help the council’s reach a decision.

The Meeting closed at 4.32 pm

CHAIRMAN
Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Transcript of Verbal Submission to WODC Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Meeting on 10/06/2021 at 14:00

Re: Continued Flood Risk and Update from WFMG

William Wareing, Woodford Mill, Mill Street, Witney OX286DE

Continued Flood Risk and Update from WFMG

Hello everyone, thank you for allowing me to address the committee again today on the
issue of flooding, on Christmas Eve and in general. | last addressed the meeting 4 months
ago — the last actual meeting discussing flood risk.

I am now one of the founders and the spokesperson for WFMG — we speak on behalf of
over 100 concerned residents and businesses owners who have joined our action group. We
have been hearing, seeing and feeling what they have been going through, first-hand.

A number of EA staff have so far said there is no plan for Witney, we are now in discussion
with the EA Area Director and have requested a site visit.

We have received “first-hand” an outpouring of stories from people who are very concerned
and those who are disappointed by the lack of action since the 2007 floods. Not everyone
wants to come here and address this committee. We are here today representing the voices
of many people who were flooded or are at flood risk.

Since we last met in February,

e We founded an action group, set up a website, distributed flyers and spoke to
concerned residents. We for one, have a plan!

e We have a river engineer on board our team, and are learning the river and land
management terminology and understanding how locks and weirs and sluices work

e We have conducted surveys of Bathing Place to the old Railway Bridges, and
assessed the river and its tributaries

e We have assessed Riparian Landownership responsibilities

e We have access to data from river gauges and have done analysis of the heights and
timing and relationship between the data collected from river gauges the data is
shockingly clear in relation to Witney’s problem

e We joined the Thames Catchment Partnership Scheme and learned how others are
balancing environmental and ecological concerns with flood risk

e We completed the EA Thames Valley Flood Scheme Consultation questionnaire as an
organisation

e We formally met with All Souls College and are asking them to act as responsible
landowners and pointed out all the fallen trees on their land.

e Residents have had to report trees blocking the water courses to the EA for removal,
the EA cannot cope with having to clean up behind irresponsible riparian landowners

e We have reported various fallen/blocking trees to the EA and are watching their
response speed and timing.

e We have had to seek charitable donations to help people get flood barriers

e We are concerned about wilful negligence and breach of duty towards citizens

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - William Wareing FINAL.docx 1

Page 9



We have amassed a lot of knowledge since, and believe the solutions are:

e Proper assessment and maintenance of the area — do you know that river level
gauge boards are submerged and therefore invisible when we have floods? No one
can even record the water levels for future assessment.

e Regular desilting of the bridge area, and an understanding of options available
where it acts as a dam. The bridge may be too expensive to modify however given
there is a level of neglect everywhere else, there is a multiplying or compounding
effect. And given we have established that the EA warning system did not even work
properly on Christmas Eve, we were placed in a position of totally unnecessary risk
and some might even call negligent.

e Widening and clearing of ditches and waterways that act as natural floodplains,
without affecting communities downstream

e Flood prevention for Eastfield and Hailey Roads

e Flood storage facilities/attenuation schemes upstream of Witney (you will see nearly
20 options for managing floods when Tony presents latter)

e Enforcing Riparian Owners to fulfil their responsibilities keeping waterways adjoining
or passing through their land clear of obstructions. That includes land owned by
WODC/WTC. A simple stroll beside the river from Bathing Place to the 2 Railway
bridges says it all to be honest.

e A clear understanding of the financial impact on us all and a revisit of previous
recommendations deemed too expensive for a once in 100 years but may now be
feasible given the average of once every 7 years, which we know will increase.

e We want to see you fighting for your community and those within your responsibility
from this frankly neglectful position, to improve their lives and their mental
wellbeing and give them hope for the future.

e No more circular conversations where the LLFA defers to WODC, WODC refers to the
LLFA or the EA. If OCC have no capability to undertake their LEGAL obligations, then
an appropriate solution must be reached. The RMA’s of which you are, have
responsibilities so how can you look to the LLFA to lead you when you are the very
group they have deferred to?

e The prior WODC Cabinet member for the Environment, when approached deferred
to someone else who deferred to someone else again. Silence is not going to solve
our problems. Given the seriousness of the issues perhaps we need a focused
Cabinet Member for flooding? This needs to change and is totally unacceptable.
Ducking the issue will not solve our problems — this is not an issue of elections,
parties, or political manoeuvring. We can only solve this as a joined-up team.

e How about we start with where is the Section 19 Report on the Christmas floods?
We have heard nothing, 6 months on. What are the recommendations and when can
they be shared with us?

e Given your duty as an RMA, and the LLFA via OCC appearing to itself defer to WODC
on related matters, it is still legally responsible for duties stipulated under the Flood
and Water Management Act 2010.

We want to help you all practically, and now have river engineering knowledge, we are not
going to go away given simple inspection and regular maintenance regimes would help
resolve things. We know it is not an overnight solution, but everything so far tells us there is
nowhere near enough attention being given to this critical issue.

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - William Wareing FINAL.docx 2

Page 10



Extract from an EA Policy paper - Thames Valley Flood Scheme

“UK climate change projections data estimates the winter daily average rainfall in England
could increase by approximately 41% by the year 2050. Peak river flows could increase by
approximately 50%. This would increase the severity and intensity of flooding for
communities, business and infrastructure.”

I am wearing my wellies in readiness, if you have not noticed.

Thank you for your attention.

END OF ADDRESS

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - William Wareing FINAL.docx

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Transcript of Verbal Submission to WODC Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Meeting on 10/06/2021 at 14:00

Re: Questions for the Environment Scrutiny Committee

Tony Stark, Woodford Mill, Mill Street, Witney OX286DE

Questions for the Environment Scrutiny Committee

Good afternoon. | am Tony Stark; | live at Woodford Mill and like William am a founder of
the Witney Flood Mitigation Group. We were flooded and out of our house for 12 months
after the 2007 floods, have had flood water in are garden on various occasions since and on
Christmas Eve 2020 had flood water in our garage and within half an inch of entering the
house.

We have invested in two types of flood barriers at great expense, to me. We do not know if
they are effective.

I need you all to realise the stress and anxiety it causes at every period of heavy rainfall
when we are in fear of it flooding again. No one should be expected to live in fear of being
flooded when there are things that can be done to prevent it happening.

We, residents and business owners in Witney who are firmly at risk of flooding have many
guestions for you, for which we require answers:

1. There are hundreds of vulnerable people living within the immediate flood envelope
a. Riverside Gardens/Riverside house on Mill Street
b. Mill House on the Roundabout
c. Otter’s Court in Aquarius
d. Others in private houses
What provision is being made for them given the debacle we experienced at
Christmas Eve?

2. What, if any of our above inflation increase in council taxes are being directed
towards flood prevention measures?

3. Many thousands of pounds that have been wasted on umpteen surveys of how to
possibly hold floodwater back upstream from Witney, not only from the river, but
also the Hailey Road drain. Sadly, nothing has ever materialized from these, because
of costs involved. surely the formula for what is now economic or not has changed
massively. Why is money being wasted on reports that produce no action or change
the outcome?

4. What recommendations from these 2007 reports have been carried out? For
example, has the river under the Bridge Street bridge been regularly de-silted as
recommended? It would be good to see evidence of when this has been done.

5. Have you calculated the cost of flooding (given the history we have seen) now on
average every 7 years and averaging £50,000 per household/business to put things
right? Let alone the loss in value of effected properties. How do you put a price on
people’s mental wellbeing? — additionally any cost/benefit analysis needs to include
the impact on the town and businesses in lost business and productivity when our

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL.docx 1

Page 13



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL.docx

main and only bridge across the Windrush is inundated with water and Witney is not
accessible?

What responsibilities have been delegated to you from OCC? What has the LFA
delegated to you as WODC. What are you doing next? What funding has been
passed to you by the OCC or the LFA in relation to environmental responsibilities
they are delegating?

Have you received the Section 19 report from the Christmas floods yet and how are
you acting upon it? If it hasn’t been received who is preparing it? When can we see a
copy?

Has a survey been done of all the peak levels reached throughout our town and all
flood debris recorded to aid future planning?

Given that WODC and WTC are the riparian landowners for much of the centre of
Witney, can we see your plans to remove trees, and silt from the area? Can WTC and
WODC confirm all adjacent land and associated water courses that are the
responsibility of the landowner have been cleared and are in good condition?

Why is it that we always discuss reactive flood action — telling us to go and buy
barriers when all other 16 of the 17 typical flood avoidance measures (see exhibit B
from the EA) all rely on public authority action and investment, yet you are focusing
on the one and only item that puts the financial and practical responsibility back on
us?

Are you aware that we did not have enough properties in the Witney flood at
Christmas to qualify for the £5k DEFRA grant for flood barriers? — what have you
done to fight for us?

Have you thought about surveying the river downstream from the bridge to find
solutions as to how, more flood water could be stored if various obstacles were
removed, which in turn could lead to a more substantial flow under Witney Bridge?

Are you aware that there is a serious and specific problem in Witney? EA river level
data from 23-25 December that we have analysed ourselves specifically points to
additional ‘effects’ in Witney — the shape of the valley, Hailey Road Drain, the Bridge,
the state of maintenance of the river course, and the ability of rainwater to soak
away given all the new housing developments you allowed to be built since 2007?

Are you aware that there are fully funded River Attenuation Schemes in places like
Stroud, for which oversight of these is fully funded by the EA? Why haven’t we got
anything similar for Witney?

Are you all going to complete the EA Thames Valley Flood Scheme Public
Consultation questionnaire given the importance of our Town and Community? Is

WODC going to give a response and get involved in the scheme?

Can you help us identify, through your planning team all associated Riparian
Landowners in the area so they can be held to account for land and river

Page 14



management? They need to be contacted and held to account with their
responsibilities in line with the law. Our recent meeting with All Souls
Representatives highlighted that they did not even know Witney flooded in
December, yet they have trees blocking the river on their land and have
responsibilities for clearing them.

Mr Wareing, on our behalf for Woodford Mill, asked you several questions back in February
(Exhibit A), We are still waiting for answers — they are included once again in my submission
below so | will not read them today.

Will you formally assign someone to work with us, jointly and with the other agencies so we
can effectively use our time wisely and get some tangible and deliverable outcomes for our
community and give them hope for the future?

We look forward to your collective response and expect detailed responses soon. When will
we receive a response to all our questions, given we are now in the 6™ month after the last
flood event?

Just to end we really want to see some action from you and in particular we want flood
prevention measures in place for Witney, not individual property protection. You have
responsibilities for Witney and surrounding areas. We believe things can be done to prevent
Witney being flooded in the future and expect you to take responsibility, with our help if
needed, to Make It Happen.

Thank You for your attention.

END OF ADDRESS

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL.docx 3

Page 15



EXHIBIT A - Questions posed at February WODC Environment Scrutiny Meeting:

“So how did we get here again’ given the intended flood avoidance actions, and what is
happening and when going forward?

1 — What are the lessons from the recent flooding and what are the corrective actions
being taken going forward?

More concrete emergency plans need to be made. Where would people have sheltered
given the coronavirus situation? Are there enough hotels nearby? How many socially
distanced families can you accommodate in a school hall, or even in the Kassam Stadium?

2 — Specifically, the council flood emergency line and support for us was a shambles, as
was support for people on the night. We had little support from WODC on the ground but
what about management escalation during an emergency, which has now been proven not
to work. All emergency services that involve public health and safety have parameters,
service levels and reviews for quality and consistency. That needs to be sorted ASAP.

3 - Evidence of Maintenance Records since the 2008 Flood Report - | do recall some de
silting work a couple of times especially when we came close to flooding in 2013/14,
however the flood report post 2008 stated that there should be maintenance every couple
of years - | do not believe this has happened and coupled with all the fallen trees along the
river of late, this additional EA responsibility is surely exacerbating the situation. Have all the
recommendations been followed? Who has assessed our progress against them? Do we
need another study given the last one is now 12 years old? There is no doubt a lot more
technology that can be used to model future floods for example or determine what every
action taken might give us in terms of a percentage improvement.

4 - Bridge Alteration Feasibility Study — | understand it was deemed unfeasible to alter the
bridge to allow more water through during floods, can this be revisited, and can we get
other opinions/options to consider? There must be solutions, and to date WODC has not
been able to influence OCC who own the bridge.

There is a turn in the river just before the bridge that causes it to silt up ad of listed
buildings, do we think those listed buildings would still be listed given the effects this is
having on a community? | am sure those who listed them in the first place would change
their minds given the situation we are in.

5 - Government Helping Residents Affected - Are those affected and those likely to be
affected due rebates on their taxes given that last 10 years+ of apparent inaction, and going
forward? Many of us were either physically or emotionally (or both) affected by the
Christmas Eve floods - for me it was the second time, and | can tell you it was very
unpleasant, even though we were luckier than many. There is of course many other actions
that residents and communities can take themselves, which | won’t cover here.

7 - Planned Actions Going Forward - What is the plan for future flood prevention? How
often do WODC, OCC and EA meet to discuss flooding risk and plans in action — can we see
what is happening? Allowing more building in the Windrush Valley, means someone has to
have accountability for the downstream effects of these decisions, and public services
shrugging their shoulders and saying public funding cuts are causing this is not the answer
given all the taxation income and prosperity that new homes bring to an area.”

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL.docx 4

Page 16



EXHIBIT B — Source: EA Thames Valley Flood Scheme graphic

Arriver catchment approach to ‘ ‘ - © moroves
attenuation urban
déd features drainage 5. Change in soil and

crop management

managing flood risk
ddd

) 2 Jointwater o dd

1. Offline resource and

fiood storage flood storage

17. Permanent
Flood barriers

16. Flood
water transfer

15. Wetland
creation

14. Online
flood storage

9. Property level
resilience

13. Temporary
or removable
flood barriers

10. River deepening
and widening

The area shown in green here is the
catchment for the central river.

12. Washlands

11. Flood
relief channel

Above you can see that of 17 different approaches to managing flood risk, only ONE relates

to residents protecting their own properties at their own cost.
How far have you assessed, or requested the assessment of the other 16 options?

Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL.docx

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Transcript of Verbal Submissions to WODC Environment Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

Meeting on 10/06/21 at 14:00

Re: Christmas Flood, Risk and Action

Kay Jerred, Riverside Gardens

Good afternoon everyone. My name is Kay Jerred. Thank you for allowing me
to address the Committee today.

| live in Riverside Gardens and am representing nearly 50 elderly and
vulnerable residents, many with mobility and health issues.

| know that there are other similar communities in Witney that need their
voices heard. They too have suffered stress and anxiety as they watch heavy
rainfall and the river level rise.

On Christmas Eve 2020 13 residents in Riverside were evacuated. 4 properties
were flooded and others had water rushing into air-bricks. One resident is still
in temporary accommodation. The average age in Riverside is 80+. It is one of
the few affordable retirement complexes in Witney.

| shall now read some of their experiences from the night. Sadly, because of
time constraints, | can’t cover them all.

Ken & Suzanne:

As Chair of the Residents Association | have lived here for 13 years and have
witnessed the results of the flooding and near misses that regularly occur here.
Many are now terrified and every time there’s a flood alert or storms are
forecast they become extremely anxious that they will be flooded again. Until
action is taken, this threat hangs over us.

Vera:

The sudden nature of the flood was a tremendous shock. It became even
more real when | had to wade through water to evacuate my home overnight.
| didn’t sleep much. Many problems remain unresolved and action needs to be
taken to stop this constant fear.

Antony & Maureen: Riverside House.

The flood was such a shock! We’d had an alert but with the words ‘no
expected property flooding’. Suddenly, water was over the terrace and we
hurriedly put some plastic sheeting and an old gate outside our bedroom door.
We couldn’t find any sandbags and there was no response to phone calls.

Page 19



Water came up the steps at the back and into our ground floor flat, only to be
met by water coming in the front door of the main House. We then had a
flood warning from the EA!

Overwhelmed and helpless best describes how we felt! What action is being
taken? Who will bear the cost of protecting us adequately?

Margaret:

What a distressing situation watching elderly people trying to protect their
properties and not being able to contact the Council for sandbags or help. If |
hadn’t been out walking and able to alert people, cars along the bank would
have definitely been in the river. It was already dark and people had settled in
for the night.

Kay pulled the emergency chord which brought the firemen here, but some of
the relief firemen hadn’t realised we were a vulnerable community.

When sandbags did arrive it was too late for some. The fact that we’ve been
told to get our own flood defences, yet given little financial help, has added to
the distress.

Liz:

| moved here in 2005 and have various health issues. In 2007 water enveloped
properties within % of an hour! With water already at the top of my thighs, |
struggled to my neighbour who was very unwell.

This Christmas, alerted by a neighbour, | saw water pouring into my next door
neighbour’s flat; | was so worried for them.

Then came the frustration and anger: ‘Here we go again’, | thought, ‘why has
nothing been done in the 13 years between!’

| felt complete despair.

Can you imagine an evacuation at night in the cold and dark, wading through
water with little or no help, with all Christmas plans in disarray and going to
temporary accommodation in the middle of a lockdown?

Do you really understand the challenges and personal upset we went through
then and the level of anxiety we experience every time it rains heavily?

It was good to see some of you visiting us, but we need to know what your

plans are and what you will be doing please? All communities in the at risk
areas, need to know this.

Page 20



In Riverside we have heard nothing of plans since Christmas and no follow-up
to the February Committee Meeting.

We have now joined up with flood action groups and 2 of us from Riverside are
spending hours seeking funding and filling out application forms.

This is one reactive solution to us never wanting to see our friends and
neighbours in such distress again. Rather interestingly, this one relies entirely
on the elderly residents to undertake, rather than the authorities we rely upon

to protect us.
There are, of course, about 20 proactive solutions to control floodwater in this

area.
So many residents have said to me:
‘Kay, no-one really cares; we’re old.’

It would be wonderful to be proved wrong.

Thank you.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday |5 July 2021

Report Number

Agenda Item No. 5

Subject

Council Priorities and Service Performance Report 2020-21 Quarter Four

Woards affected

All

Accountable member

All relevant Cabinet Members

Accountable officer

Giles Hughes, Chief Executive
Tel: (01993) 861658 Email: giles.hughes@westoxon.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose

This report provides details of service performance during Q4

Annexes

Annex A — Council Plan Annual Statement

Annex B - Performance Indicator report

Recommendation

That the Committee reviews, and challenges as appropriate, performance for
2020-21 Q4

Corporate priorities

Climate Action: Leading the way in protecting and enhancing the environment
by taking action locally on climate change and biodiversity

A Vibrant District Economy: Securing future economic success through
supporting existing local businesses and attracting new businesses to deliver
the economic ambitions of the Local Industrial Strategy

Meeting the Housing Needs of our Changing Population: Securing the
provision of market and affordable housing of a high quality for a wide range
of householders making their home in West Oxfordshire

Key Decision

No

Exempt

No

Page 23




2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

BACKGROUND

The Council monitors service performance each quarter as well as progress towards
achieving the aim and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan at the end of Q2 and Q4.

Performance in those service areas relating to the work of this Committee is provided in
this report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK - PERFORMANCE REPORTING

A high level Commissioning Framework was approved by Cabinet in October 2020. The
Commissioning Framework identifies that the provision of robust performance data —
quantitative and qualitative, together with a robust analysis of that data and evidence —is
vital to ensure that the Council has the information to assess whether its commissioned
services are being delivered to a high quality.

A new performance management framework has been developed; a much broader
framework than previous frameworks. It sets out six key strands of information on which
assurance needs to be provided, with a key shift in focus from performance monitoring to
performance management:

Business analytics and service assurance

Place based measures and comparators

Publica Business Plan strategic actions

Council Plan priority actions

Project and programme management assurance
Risk and opportunity management

The quarterly performance report will continue to evolve in line with the Performance
Management Framework as well as feedback from senior officers and Members.

As an example, a selection of publically available benchmarking data has been included in the
Q4 Performance Indicator report on a trial basis. Benchmarking can be a useful tool for
driving improvement; by comparing our performance with other similar organisations, we
can start a discussion about what good performance might look like, and why there might
be variations, as well as learning from other organisations about how they operate (process
benchmarking).

Two comparator groups that are commonly used to benchmark Councils’ performance are:
all shire districts councils and CIPFA Nearest Neighbours (NN). Whilst performance
benchmarking can be useful as a tool for driving improvement, it is important to remember
that performance needs to be viewed within context i.e. a range of both internal and
external factors contribute to the level of performance achieved; therefore benchmarks
should be used as a ‘guide’ and as a starting point for discussion.

The Commissioning Framework also sets out the relationship between Publica and the
Council and their respective responsibilities. Publica’s Executive Director (Commissioning)
is accountable to the Council for the services commissioned from Publica, and also for the
services commissioned by Publica from third parties on behalf of the Council. Publica must
ensure that it provides the necessary information to the Council so it can assess whether
the commissioned services are being delivered in accordance with the agreed quality and

Page 24



standard. The Council’s Chief Executive is responsible for reviewing and approving the
information provided in this report prior to its publication.

The Council’s Chief Executive has received a report on service performance, and he has
assessed it in line with the high level Commissioning Statement. . He has noted the progress
that has been made to deliver the actions in the Council Plan as well the lower level of
operational performance in Q4 as a result of the ongoing pandemic and its impact on
resources and the delivery of services. The Chief Executive has also noted the continued
impact of Covid-19 on communities, businesses, customers, services, and staff as the nation
moves from response to recovery and back to response again. He has drawn particular
attention to the following:

The nation entered its third lockdown on 5 January 2021. Many services continue to
support residents, communities and businesses that have been impacted by Covid-19 as
part of their every day job. Enormous efforts continue to be made by a number of
services in supporting businesses to access grants, carrying out ‘track and trace’, and
operating the Community Response hub (call handling, outbound calling, complex
welfare support and problem solving, food parcel delivery and welfare checks, and
signposting those that need support to the relevant organisations). In 2020-21, the
Council distributed a total of £39,595,446 in business grants;

The Council’s leisure centres have been severely impacted by Covid-19 and three
national lockdowns, when the facilities were required to close down. Following the end
of the third lockdown, leisure centres were re-opened for some outdoor activities on
29 March 2021, and potentially all facilities and activities could be fully re-opened from
21 June, subject to the Government agreeing to the stage four easing of the national
lockdown. The Council agreed a contract variation with the service provider and
further financial recovery packages to cover the period until March 2021. Some
government grant funding has been available to cover Council losses; and a further
tranche of funding was made available through Sport England to cover costs incurred by
leisure operators during the lockdown, and to support the re-opening;

Affordable housing has continued to be delivered in the District and demonstrates the
success of the strategic sites included in the Local Plan in bringing forward housing
numbers. During the year, 374 affordable homes were delivered exceeding the Local
Plan target by 100 units;

Similar to other councils throughout the country, the Council’s business rates collection
figure (in year) has been understandably impacted by Covid-19. The Government has
gone some way in helping certain businesses such as retail with 100% business rate
relief, but there are still businesses that are struggling financially. The Council is
distributing a number of support grants to eligible businesses, however, there is no
requirement to use it to pay for business rates.

COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The West Oxfordshire District Council Plan Annual Statement (attached at Annex A)
presents a narrative of progress towards each of the Council priorities, drawing together
specific examples of successful actions, such as:

e Adoption of Carbon Action Plan and Climate Change Strategy by Full Council;
Page 25



4.2.

4.3.

e  Submission of Salt Cross Garden Village Area Action Plan to the Planning Inspectorate,
setting out strategic planning policy for zero-carbon development;

e Appointment of Market Towns Officer to work with Witney, Chipping Norton and
Carterton on Town Plans as a means of supporting economic recovery from Covid-19;

e Application of Health Impact Assessments to major planning applications as a means of
delivering ‘healthy place-shaping’;

e Scoping work underway to explore the establishment of well-being hubs, as a means of
enabling partner organisations (other public service providers and the Voluntary and
Community Sector) to work alongside each other to provide accessible and joined up
services for residents.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Since the start of the pandemic, many services, both customer facing and support services
have been impacted by Covid-19; the Council’s leisure facilities have had to close during
multiple lockdowns and tier restrictions, while other services including housing, revenues
and benefits, planning, land charges and customer services have experienced higher
workloads due to customer demand or because colleagues were supporting residents,
communities, and businesses through the crisis. Support services such as ICT, Accountancy
and Accounts Payable have also played a part in supporting the administration of business
grants and other payments. The majority of staff have continued to deliver services from
home which has meant that services have had to adapt and find new ways of working. This
has presented a major challenge for some services such as planning and food safety and
resulted in backlogs. The impact of these challenges coupled with delivering key projects
such as the new revenues and benefits system has affected performance in some areas.

The services which relate to the work of this Committee are Environmental Regulatory
Services, Waste Management, and Parking; the relevant indicators are listed at the front of
the Performance Indictor report at Annex B with pages 22 to 30 of that Annex providing
the further relevant information.

Of the five targeted indicators, three indicators achieved their targets (Green), and two
indicators achieved their targets ‘within tolerance’ (Amber). A full report is attached at
Annex B.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

RISK ASSESSMENT

None

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 26



/¢ abed

b

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL PLAN ANNUAL STATEMENT
April 2020 - March 2021



8¢ abed

West Oxfordshire District Council Corporate Plan 2020-24

Our vision is to support West Oxfordshire to be
fit for the future through:

I. Climate Action
Leading the way in protecting and enhancing the environment
by taking action locally on climate change and biodiversity.

o \ @ 2. Healthy Towns and Villages
' Facilitating healthy lifestyles and better wellbeing for everyone.

‘. 3. A Vibrant District Economy

. Securing future economic success through supporting existing local
: businesses and attracting new businesses to deliver the economic
ambitions of the Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy.

4. Strong Local Communities
Supporting and building prosperous and inclusive local communities.

5. Meeting the Housing Needs of our Changing
Population
Securing the provision of market and affordable housing of a high
quality for the wide range of householders making their home in
West Oxfordshire.

6. Modern Council Services and Sustainable Finance

Delivering excellent modern services whilst ensuring the financial
sustainability of the Council.




6¢ obed

Introduction

Following the launch of the West Oxfordshire Council Plan 2020 — 24 in January 2020, Officers have embarked on delivering the projects defined as a means
of achieving the Council Plan vision to support West Oxfordshire to be fit for the future through delivery of its priorities.

The context for delivering the Council Plan has changed significantly given the Coronavirus pandemic that required the Council to pivot its focus towards
responding to the sudden challenges posed by the pandemic, principally supporting West Oxfordshire residents, its business and economy, and community
and voluntary sector during the series of lockdowns experienced over the first year of the Council Plan. This involved redeployment of 100+ staff and in so
doing enabled support for vulnerable members of the community at the same time as continued delivery of key public services.Whilst focus shifted to the
pandemic, work has continued to progress against each of the priorities, albeit perhaps in a different way to that anticipated during the creation of the
Council Plan.This agility and ability to adapt to changing circumstances, and indeed the unprecedented situation, reflects well on the Council and its staff and
demonstrates that they have remained true to the vision in the Council Plan to be ‘it for the future’.

This Annual Statement details progress against each of the 6 Council Plan priorities and should be read in conjunction with the WODC Annual Monitoring
Report (AMR) for the period I** April 2019 — 31* March 2020.The AMR is structured around the 6 Council Plan priorities, setting out progress against the
Local Plan as the strategic development framework for the District. By priority, an outline of the current district context in terms of background/contextual
information and what has happened during the AMR period is provided. Facts and figures are used to illustrate the Council’s progress/patterns of change
against a number of indicators — such as carbon emission reductions, amount of recycling, visitor numbers to leisure centres, and local workforce structure.
This detailed overview also highlights what is on the horizon by way of activity, which aligns with the actions that underpin the 6 Council Plan priorities and
delivery of the Council’s vision to be ‘fit for the future’.



https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/e0fpkd1l/local-plan-annual-monitoring-report-2019-2020.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/e0fpkd1l/local-plan-annual-monitoring-report-2019-2020.pdf

o€ abed

Covid-19 Response and Recovery Planning

A short summary of the Council’s response to the pandemic is provided below which illustrates the far reaching impact of the pandemic and efforts to meet
the needs of West Oxfordshire’s local economy, the voluntary and community sector and local residents.

WODC Covid-19 Response Summary:

Given the Council’s responsibility for delivering services to over 100,000 residents, Covid-19 has been an unprecedented challenge which required us to
react quickly to changing circumstances in order to support local business and economy, the voluntary and community sector and local residents. Ve have
maintained essential services whilst redeploying staff to new areas of work to help deal with the crisis.

There has been a dynamic and inspiring community sector response across VWest Oxfordshire to the challenges introduced through the pandemic. Local
groups, towns and villages have mobilised to support their communities and the Council has developed a Community Hub team to work effectively with
voluntary sector partners and volunteers.

Collaboration with our partners at a County-wide level was required in order to respond to the crisis. In particular, close coordination and good
communication between the County, City and District Councils, with the NHS and OxLEP, to support vulnerable people and align programmes to support
local businesses.

The following statistics for the 2020/2021 financial year outline some of what the Council has achieved during the Covid-19 lockdown period working with
key partners:

e 1,430 residents have been given support with complex needs

e [,017 vulnerable residents have been contacted by Councillors

e Grants totalling £39,595,446 paid to businesses in West Oxfordshire

® 6,217 shielded residents called during lockdown.

In tandem with supporting local business and economy, the voluntary and community sector and local residents through the pandemic, considerable effort
was invested in planning for recovery from the impacts of the pandemic and in the longer term, the District’s renewal. It was recognised that the joint work
with local communities, and with Oxfordshire’s partners, undertaken in the early months of the pandemic provided strong foundations from which to
develop a recovery plan.

A cross-party Covid-19 Advisory Group was established comprising Councillors working with Officers to consider how we will address challenges and
opportunities arising from the pandemic through support to enable communities and businesses to thrive in a post-Covid world. A series of workshops
were held to devise four Covid-19 Recovery Themes of Economy, Community, Climate and Council, Service Delivery and Finance.These are closely aligned



T¢ abed

with the 6 Council Plan priorities as a means of ensuring that actions prioritised as part of the District’s Covid-19 recovery effort and investment in this will
also positively contribute to achieving the vision of the Council Plan. Full Council considered the West Oxfordshire Covid-19 Recovery Plan in October

2020 and this provides the Council with a helpful framework for ensuring that the wide ranging impacts of the pandemic are mitigated against and adapted
to.

Whilst this Annual Statement focuses on progress against the Council Plan, activity underway and what is on the horizon in relation to achieving the
Covid-19 Recovery Themes is also referenced due to the close alignment of these two areas of activity.


https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/8d8b970bc2e9597/west-oxon-covid-recovery-plan.pdf

Z¢ obed

Climate Action: Leading the way in protecting and enhancing the environment by taking action locally on climate
change and biodiversity

Covid-19 Recovery Theme: Climate

Over the last year Full Council approved two commitments in the Council Plan:-

e The Carbon Action Plan (October 2020), incorporating the Pathway to Achieving Carbon Neutral by 2030

e Climate Change Strategy (February 2021), focussing on climate action.

Together these set out a comprehensive, clear and robust strategy for the Council’s response to the climate and ecological emergency.

The Carbon Action Plan defines ‘The Pathway to Achieving Carbon Neutral by 2030’. It:

Presents extensive data on WODC’s Green House Gas (GHG) emissions

Presents the GHG account as a baseline and measure of WODC’s current impact on climate change, thus calibrating the success of future action taken
to reduce/remove emissions

Defines a set of Guiding Principles for planning future activity by WODC towards its target

Sets out a process for the monitoring and review of action in progress and planned, keeping the Plan live and responsive to external influences,
technological changes and innovation

Leads by example, establishing an assessment methodology and Guiding Principles that other partners working across the District can apply to their
own projects.

The Climate Change Strategy provides a framework for achieving the Council’s clear and robust strategic priorities for climate action. Informed by extensive
consultation, the Strategy enables the targeting of resources in a structured way. It enables WODC to contribute strategically to climate action for

Oxfordshire and the South East whilst also taking local, grassroots action on five core themes of activity: |) Protect and restore natural ecosystems, 2)
Energy, 3) Active travel and low carbon transport, 4) Standards in new development, and 5) Engage, support and educate.

With the Strategy in place, the Council has the means to:

e Influence and shape strategy and policy for climate at County and Regional level
e Communicate its local response for the purposes of sharing best practice
°

Contribute positively to the national effort — channelling any funding to achieve local outcomes


https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/tslaufqh/carbon-action-plan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/climate-change-strategy

e¢ abed

e Listen and respond to community views on climate action.

The Council has focussed on producing planning policy to achieve net-zero carbon development of 2,200 homes at Salt Cross Garden Village. The Salt
Cross Garden Village Area Action Plan  (SCGVAAP) has been submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for hearing in Summer 2021. If the policies for the Salt

Cross Garden Village remain intact then this will provide a template for other developments within the District.

In addition to the SCGV AARP a Sustainability Standards Checklist has been developed by an internal working group with input from planning policy,
development management, biodiversity, landscape, climate and conservation heritage specialists. This was approved by Full Council in February 2021.The
Checklist incorporates all elements of environmental sustainability for consideration in planning, including an expectation on applicants to consider tree
planting and biodiversity. A commitment to securing the benefits of the Checklist has been made by the Council through the funding of a Sustainability
Planning Specialist for 12 months to ensure that these are applied to development proposals going forward. The Standards relate to Water use and flood
risk; Biodiversity; Green and Active Travel; Aligning with net-zero carbon; Sustainable construction; and Materials and waste.

Planning permission has recently been granted for a Solar Farm on land to the west of Eynsham, within proximity to the Strategic Development Area West
Eynsham and the Salt Cross Garden Village.

Turning to the Council’s overarching goal to enhance our natural environment and boost biodiversity through the establishment of robust, resilient, and
well-functioning ecological networks several strands of activity have been underway over the last year.

WODC has played a proactive role as a District partner of the Oxfordshire Growth Board which has recently engaged in a draft Strategic Vision for
Oxfordshire which commits specifically to protecting and enhancing our natural environment, whilst pursuing a zero-carbon future.The Environment
Advisory Group, on which the District lead executive member sits, exists to embed critical environmental thinking across the Growth Board’s programmes
(e.g. Healthy Place Shaping) and link closely with other existing partnerships such as the Local Nature Partnership which is currently in formation.

The establishment of an Oxfordshire Local Nature Partnership is particularly relevant to the Council achieving its ambition to safeguard West Oxfordshire’s
natural environment.This strategic forum will exist to guide nature recovery in an integrated way to produce multiple benefits for local people, the
economy and the environment. Stakeholder engagement in December 2020 and March 2021 confirmed strong support for an Oxfordshire Local Nature
Partnership and detailed work is now underway on its Governance arrangements with its formal launch anticipated in September 2021.

A further Oxfordshire-wide partnership approach towards biodiversity enhancements is the Nature Recovery Network of which WODC is a contributor.
The Nature Recovery Network is working to produce a Nature Recovery Strategy (a statutory requirement of the Environment Bill) that will endeavour to
protect and enhance the natural environment as well as guiding the development of planning policies. An overarching aim of the NRN is to double the
extent of land of high value for nature by 2050.The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 provides an opportunity to use the draft Nature Recovery Map and
recommended associated policies to help plan for nature’s recovery at a county-wide level and to set the framework for future Local Plans. WODC sits on
the NRN and actively supports the maintenance of Oxfordshire’s Conservation Target Areas and Local Wildlife Sites Projects through their consideration
via the planning process. Recent examples include delegation of authority to Woodstock Town Council to take forward an application via Natural England to



https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/salt-cross-garden-village/
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/salt-cross-garden-village/
https://oxfordshireplan.org/
https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity/draft-map-of-oxfordshires-nature-recovery-network/
https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/proposed-policies-for-op2050/

v abed

designate the Local Wildlife Site ‘VWoodstock Water Meadows’ as a Local Nature Reserve and additionally has provide £4,000 grant funding to the Local
Wildlife Trust and Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre who run the Local Wildlife Sites project.

The Windrush in Witney and Lower Windrush Valley Project are a key policy consideration for the development of the East Witney Strategic Development
Area, informing new access arrangements between the new built area of Witney and the landscape surrounding it. Of particular note is the landscape and
ecological value within the Windrush Valley just north of the A40 which forms part of the East Witney SDA area.

A Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Mechanism for securing a positive contribution to biodiversity is required of major (and some minor) applications for
compliance with Local Plan Policy H3 ‘Bio-diversity and Geo-diversity’. The Interim Biodiversity Net Gain Guidance for Developers and Ecological
Consultants has been in operation since April 2020, providing guidance to developers to ensure that sufficient information is submitted to demonstrate
Biodiversity Net Gain. Furthermore, the ThamesValley Environmental Records Centre has supported WODC to screen biodiversity metric calculations
submitted to ensure that they achieve a Net Gain for Biodiversity. The first Biodiversity Net Gain payment has been made to fund off-site BNG provision
arising from development of the Windrush Industrial Park.The payment of £112,290 was secured for the Trust for Oxfordshire’s Environment to deliver
9.41 biodiversity units which represents a significant step for the financial contribution towards nature’s recovery within West Oxfordshire.

At March 2021, 15 planning applications were applying the BNG approach.This progress is being fed into a national research project at the Durrell Institute
of Conservation and Ecology to identify how BNG is contributing towards nature’s recovery at the UK level and inform what happens when BNG becomes
mandatory.

Work has also progressed on a draft Green Infrastructure Strategy Supplementary Planning Document which would guide where investment is required for
people and wildlife e.g. BNG payments could be used in specific locations. This will incorporate Building with Nature principles to provide planners and
developers with evidence-based, how-to, guidance on delivering high-quality green infrastructure. In support of this approach, a Natural Environment
Investment Readiness Fund (NEIRF) bid has been submitted by WODC in March 2021 to fund a Natural Capital Investment Strategy for West Oxfordshire.
This Strategy will develop investment and revenue-stream opportunities for Green Infrastructure, natural capital, biodiversity net gain, and carbon balance
within key strategic opportunity areas for the district. The £99,000 bid (outcome due in June 2021) is supported by the Council’s partners Oxfordshire
County Council, District/City Council partners, BBOWT, Lower Windrush Valley Project, The Wychwood Project, Evenlode Catchment Project and the
Trust for Oxfordshire’s Environment. This collaborative effort between climate and planning Officers demonstrates an understanding of revenue stream
models for natural capital with benefits for habitat creation for both biodiversity and natural flood risk management.

Finally, early work has commenced on a WODC Biodiversity Plan.This will define a biodiversity work programme to include development of Land
Management Plans for land within the Council’s stewardship, with ecological enhancement a key priority identified in the Covid-19 Recovery Plan.A
Biodiversity and Countryside and Land Management Officer has been funded as part of the Council’s investment in the recovery to deliver these benefits for
the Council’s estate.


https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/pshd12ct/biodiversity-net-gain-guidance.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/pshd12ct/biodiversity-net-gain-guidance.pdf
https://osf.io/preprints/socarxiv/tw6nr/
https://www.buildingwithnature.org.uk/

Gg abed

What’s on the Horizon?

e Continued partnership work to further develop the Local Nature Recovery Strategy, including further exploration of how the Draft Oxfordshire Nature
Recovery Map can be used to inform the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and the proposed review of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan due to commence in
autumn 2021.

Continued development of land management plans and ecological appraisal to conserve and enhance the ecological condition of Council’s own land.
Implementation of the Sustainability Standards Checklist to planning applications.

Appointment of an Energy Projects Specialist to assist in realising the ambition of the Carbon Action Plan.

Sustainability assessment of Council offices, involving modelling of energy performance and assessment of waste, water and cycle storage facilities
undertaken. Recommendations for retrofit to be considered.

Launch of the Oxfordshire Local Nature Partnership.

Consultation on draft Green Infrastructure Strategy Supplementary Planning Document.



og abed

Healthy Towns and Villages: Facilitating healthy lifestyles and better wellbeing for everyone

Recovery Theme: Communities

The value in adopting a ‘healthy place shaping’ approach in new and existing developments is highlighted in the Council Plan.A Health Impact Assessment
(HIA) toolkit and methodology has been approved by the Oxfordshire Growth Board in January 2021 and is now to be applied to the delivery of the local
plan and major developments. HIA is a practical approach used to judge the effects a proposed development may have on the health and wellbeing of
different groups of people. It is a tool used to identify the health impacts of a plan or project and to develop recommendations to maximise the positive
impacts and minimise the negative impacts, while maintaining a focus on addressing health inequalities. By bringing such health considerations to the fore,
HIAs add value to the planning process.The findings of HIAs are used to make recommendations to decision makers as to how any negative health impacts
of a development can be reduced, and any positive health impacts maximised.

It is intended that this methodology will be used by developers and consultants when preparing major development proposals to help shape and inform
design choices.The Council has recently requested HIAs for major development applications in Witney and Woodstock which were submitted and are
currently being assessed against the Toolkit and Methodology for conformity. Further efforts to augment healthy place-shaping in the District through
development is evident in the draft Supplementary Planning Document for the East Chipping Norton Strategic Development Area.This new development of
1,200 homes, along with around 5 hectares of business floorspace and a range of supporting services and facilities and green space and biodiversity
enhancements, presents a further opportunity to create an area which puts the health and well-being of its residents (incoming and existing) at its heart.

Healthy Place Shaping has been further augmented by Policy 4 in the Salt Cross Garden Village Area Action Plan which requires a ‘Rapid Health Impact
Assessment’ to accompany any planning application for major development at the garden village. This must demonstrate alighment with the emerging
Oxfordshire HIA methodology, to fully identify the needs of everyone in how they live and work, access and use all types of infrastructure, services and
networks.

Consultants were commissioned to undertake a Built Indoor Leisure Facilities Strategy for the District in March 2020 and significant steps have been taken
towards achieving this key action identified in the Council Plan. Initial work involved an audit of current indoor leisure facilities stock across the District.
Sport England are modelling leisure facility need against projected population growth for the District (due June 2021). In addition to this preparatory work
towards the Built Indoor Leisure Facility Strategy, a Focus Group to consider need in the Witney area and scope for a relocated Windrush Leisure Centre
(‘Windrush 2’) is imminent and the outcomes of this will be supplemented by a resident’s online survey to help inform the required facility mix for any new
Windrush 2.

Collectively the outputs of the initial audit, modelling against population growth and stakeholder consultation will inform a needs analysis of indoor Leisure
facilities — addressing current, latent and unmet need for built leisure facilities across West Oxfordshire. This will form the basis of the Built Indoor Leisure
Strategy & associated Action Plan.


https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/210126-Oxon-HIA-Toolkit-FINAL.pdf
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/210126-Oxon-HIA-Toolkit-FINAL.pdf

/€ abed

Turning to measures of health and well-being across the District, the March 2021 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) provides information about
Oxfordshire's population and the factors affecting health, wellbeing, and social care needs.A strong feature of the JSNA is a consideration of the wider
determinants of health which is valuable to the District in planning its support to local health and well being. It is informed by research undertaken between
November 2020 — February 2021 and is endorsed by the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board.

Community profiles for West Oxfordshire are provided on the places page of Oxfordshire Insight, presenting a range of population and health and wellbeing
statistics including:

Population by age

Deprivation and children in poverty

Public Health indicators

Physical activity and child obesity

Unpaid care and care homes

GP practice data for selected health conditions (diabetes, dementia and depression)

House prices and commuting

Of particular note is a February 2021 updated community profile for Witney.

What’s on the Horizon?

e Deployment of a Healthy Place Shaping Partner funded by Sport England via Oxfordshire County Council’s Public Health Team to WODC to support
the adoption of a Healthy Place Shaping approach.

e Built Indoor Sports Facility Strategy (including proposals for relocation of Windrush Leisure Centre) to Cabinet for Adoption in Summer 2021.

o New Playing Pitch Strategy for the District to provide an assessment of the need for playing pitches and recommendations for improving provision,
informed by consultation with user group representatives.

e Developing, with partners, a masterplan for the redevelopment of Hanborough Station.


http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/places
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/Witney_profile_Feb21.pdf

8¢ abed

AVibrant District Economy: Securing future economic success through supporting existing local businesses and
attracting new businesses to deliver the economic ambitions of the Local Industrial Strategy

Recovery Theme: Economy

The Council Plan identified two strategic areas for economic growth which the Council is also committed to delivering through their inclusion in the Local
Industrial Strategy: the Carterton Technology Hub and the Garden Village Science Park. Progress has been made on each.

The Carterton Technology Hub seeks to unleash the economic role, potential and value of Carterton through a new Technology Hub. Local market
strengths include many small businesses with specialisms in high-tech manufacturing and engineering in addition to RAF Brize Norton.There is a local
imbalance of jobs to workers leading to around 60% out-commuting (including to nearby Witney), indicating both the need and opportunity to diversify the
local economy.A strategic outline case has been developed which has informed a proposition paper to the OxLEP, thus further evolving the business case
for the project which was successfully made through its inclusion in the adopted Local Plan. Next steps include a detailed feasibility study and SWOT
analysis informed by input from a wide range of stakeholders previously engaged in the concept through the Local Plan process. Carterton Town Council is
identified as a potential lead partner — supported by WODC and involving the MOD, RAF, OxLEP, local businesses and residents.This endeavour will be
further supported through Oxfordshire County Council’s ‘Access to Carterton Strategy’.Work on this to date has identified a ‘preferred options package’
comprising three distinct schemes to improve Carterton’s strategic connectivity: B4477 Carriageway Improvement Scheme;West Facing Slips at B4477/A40
Junction and wider benefits schemes and;Witney to Carterton cycleway along Witney Road.

The Salt Cross Science and Technology Park allocated as part of the new ‘Garden Village’ strategic development area in the adopted Local Plan, includes a
40 hectare science and technology park that will attract high growth businesses giving them the space to grow and create high value jobs in line with the
ambitions of the Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy. The Area Action Plan includes a policy detailing the requirements of the park which will deliver,
within an extensive network of green and blue infrastructure, 80,000m?2 of science, technology, engineering and high tech related business floor space.
Concurrently an Outline Planning Application has been received by site promoter, Grosvenor Estates, which proposes 57,000m2 of B-Class land uses as
part of an employment area with the proposed uses to be determined at the Reserved Matters Application stage of the planning process. Once the Area
Action Plan has been adopted this will be used to set the policy context against which the planning application for Salt Cross will be determined, of which
the Science and Technology Park is part.

In close proximity to the Salt Cross Science and Technology Park is Hanborough Station and this is identified within the Council Plan as a focus for
partnership effort to secure new and upgraded infrastructure, including short and long-term enhancements to the Cotswold railway line. The Hanborough
Station Sub-Group of the North Cotswold Line Task Force has been established, bringing together the five county councils and Local Enterprise
Partnerships covering the 86-mile route between Hereford, Worcester and Oxford, together with the Cotswold Line Promotion Group, Network Rail and
the Great Western Railway.



6€ abed

In January 2020, the Task Force submitted its case to the government for a doubled two trains per hour North Cotswold Line service between
Worcestershire, Oxford and London and we are awaiting the assessment of the case by the Department for Transport and Network Rail. In parallel, the
Task Force set out its aspirations for additional local trains as a metro-style service between Hanborough and Oxford to support West Oxfordshire housing
growth, the visitor economy and to encourage a shift from road to rail for journeys to Oxford or London. The Sub-Group will develop the case for these
local services, plans for expanded passenger facilities at Hanborough Station, and engage with local stakeholders and communities.

On the theme of lower carbon transportation, the value of provision of Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP) as a means of improving the public realm in
our town centres was identified as an action towards achieving a vibrant district economy, in addition to meeting zero carbon ambitions. Two approaches to
this are underway:

I. WODC direct procurement of Electric Vehicle Charging Point (EVCP) in Council-owned car parks: Viability assessments of car parks within the
Council’s stewardship for installation of EVCP have been undertaken in partnership with the Oxfordshire Park and Charge team. Six car parks have been
selected as part of Tranche One for EVCP during Spring and Summer 202 1: Hensington Road, Woodstock; Back Lane, Eynsham;Woodford Way, Witney;
Woodgreen Offices, Witney; Black Bourton, Carterton; and New Street, Chipping Norton.

2. An Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy (OEVIS) is being developed to set a consistent design and technical standard for EV
infrastructure across the County.WODC is inputting to the strategy which is being coordinated by the iHub Innovation Team at Oxfordshire County
Council.

The Covid-19 pandemic has expedited the need to target efforts to support the vitality and viability of our market towns and this is captured in the West
Oxfordshire Covid-19 Recovery Plan.The Council has funded a dedicated Market Towns Officer to work with Witney, Chipping Norton and Carterton to
develop Town Covid-19 Recovery Plans which respond to the specific needs of each.Town Centre Covid-19 Recovery Groups have been established to
engage key stakeholders to identify the unique impacts of the pandemic on their town, the (short and longer term) opportunities that have arisen, and
identify a set of initiatives that will help realise the potential of the town.This activity will inform the Covid-19 Recovery Plan for each town, aiming to
support local businesses and strengthen the visitor economy.

In addition to the Town Covid-19 Recovery Plans, the Council is procuring a place promotion app to support local business, with the predicted impact
being an increase in footfall across the town centres by encouraging repeat purchases and attracting new visitors to West Oxfordshire. The loyalty app will
list events and interactive trails in addition to presenting users with discounts and offers at local businesses. The Council has also partnered with Makespace
Oxford as part of a launch of a £1.7 million programme to breathe life back into high streets through the Meanwhile in Oxfordshire Project. This initiative is
designed to encourage selected vacant units in our high streets to be filled with a variety of offerings, from retail to creative and co-working spaces as a
means of mitigating the negative impact of empty units on the high street.

The Council has submitted in January 2021 a representation to a Government consultation on proposals to allow all uses falling within the Use Class E to
be converted to residential use under permitted development (i.e. no planning permission required for change to residential use), irrespective of scale and


https://makespaceoxford.org/launching-meanwhile-in-oxfordshire/

0t abed

location. The Council has advised Government that whilst fully supportive of housing delivery where need is evidenced, key uses in town centres including
currently occupied commercial properties, will be lost to residential creating an imbalance of uses that harms town centre vitality and viability and that
beyond town centres, key uses in rural areas will be lost to the detriment of local communities (leading to unsustainable patterns of development and
commuting). The Council will continue to seek to protect the vitality and viability of town centres and rural economic sustainability through its role as Local
Planning Authority.

The Council is continuing to support local businesses who are having to adapt to changing Covid-19 restrictions, and multiple lockdowns through the
distribution of a large range of business grants made available by central government.A total of £39,595,446 has been paid over the 2020 - 21 financial year.
Financial support has also been made available to those individuals having to self-isolate under the Test and Trace support payment. Since 5 November 2020,
a number of grants has been made available to businesses that have been required to close under the Tier system or national lockdowns, or were able to
remain open but were severely affected by Tier restrictions:

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed, Mandatory) — a total of £5,690,759 was paid out to 3214 businesses in retail, leisure, hospitality,
accommodation and events which were mandated to close between 5 November 2020 and 3| March 2021;

Additional Restrictions Grant (Discretionary) — a total of £1,310,902 was paid out to 834 businesses from November to the 4 April 2021.This grant is
available for businesses that do not have a business rate assessment of their own as well as other businesses with a rateable value that have remained
open but have been severely impacted by the pandemic. This category includes charity properties and regular market traders;

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) - a total of £ 769,273 was paid to 1,515 businesses that remained open but were severely impacted by
restrictions;

Christmas Support Payment for wet-led pubs scheme — one-off grants of £1,000 were paid to 37 businesses between December 2020 and February
2021;

Closed Businesses Lockdown payment — 779 businesses were supported with a one-off payment. A total of £3,821,000 was paid out between 5 January
2021 and 4 April 2021.

What’s on the Horizon

‘Access to Carterton’ — public consultation on ‘preferred options package’

Installation of Electric Vehicle Charging Points in the aforementioned six WODC owned car parks across the District
Development and implementation of Town Centre Covid-19 Recovery Plans for Carterton, Chipping Norton and Witney
Launch and roll out of Loyal Free place promotion app

Development of Masterplan for Hanborough Station



T obed

Strong Local Communities: Supporting and building prosperous and inclusive local communities

Recovery Theme: Communities

The response to the pandemic has really shone a spotlight on the importance of this priority — we have witnessed a dynamic and inspiring community sector
response across West Oxfordshire to the challenges introduced by the pandemic. Local Groups, towns and villages have mobilised to support their
communities and the Council established a Community Response Hub to further augment these efforts and work effectively with voluntary sector partners
and volunteers.There has also been a strong collaborative effort to tackle the crisis, where the Council has sought, together with the County, City and
District Councils, the NHS and OxLEP to support vulnerable people and align programmes to support local businesses.

These collaborative efforts between ourselves and partners, and the communities we serve must continue and be built upon in order to respond to any local
Covid-19 outbreaks, address any local food security issues (£59k of funding has been awarded to Food Banks and community food projects), and meet any
duties to support those who are vulnerable. This work will complement delivery of other aspects of the Council Plan identified under this priority, as
described further below. Examples of efforts include:

e Recruitment of staff to work with new Mutual Aid groups to sustain them as an invaluable resource to tackle loneliness and isolation in our communities

e Research into the establishment of Wellbeing Hubs is underway, as committed to in the Covid-19 Recovery Plan.This model would see the co-location
of statutory and Voluntary/Community sector partners alongside housing associations to deliver easy to access services. Early conversations are
underway, and current and planned provision has been mapped so that gaps in provision can inform where there is opportunity to complement and
support existing service delivery to residents.

e West Oxfordshire Citizens Advice working on behalf of the Council to provide £63,655 to those struggling to afford food under the Covid-19 Winter
Grants Scheme (funded by Oxfordshire County Council)

e Recruitment of additional staff to allow the Community Response Hub to continue to support residents with significant wellbeing challenges

e Approval of funding for Oxfordshire ‘Reducing the Risk’ charity to provide Domestic Abuse Champion training in addition to securing a two year
extension to the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse contract

e Approval of funding for two local West Oxfordshire charities, the Witney Hub and the APCAM Group, to deliver mental health services for young
people and their families

e The Go Active Get Healthy Diabetes service has moved online and provides help for residents to become more active as a means to manage their
diabetes.

A commitment in the Council Plan to direct our management of property assets through a new Asset Management Plan to achieve improvements in the joint
use of sites through the One Public Estate programme has moved a step forward with completion of a series of feasibility reviews of sites in Welch Way,
Witney. Following this scope for feasibility work on partnership owned sites to consider options for development that suit all partner’s needs is to be


https://reducingtherisk.org.uk/oxfordshire/
http://wellbeing.turning-point.co.uk/oxfordshire/hubs/witney-hub/
https://apcamgroup.org.uk/
https://www.local.gov.uk/onepublicestate

2t abed

assessed — in accordance with the principles of the One Public Estate programme.The next action will be to undertake a draft scoping exercise to which
input will be invited from all partner organisations.

Further to the focus on assets at VWelch Way,Witney, a number of public sector partners (District and Oxfordshire County Council and the NHS) with
offices in Witney are assessing the scope for co-location of office space as a means to reduce office space requirements.This conversation has been
expedited by the disruption to established ways of working by the Covid-19 pandemic.The next step is to undertake an appraisal for the repurposing of local
authority office space in Witney in order to enable and promote flexible working across agencies. Careful consideration will be given to how we can work
more efficiently on a smaller footprint whilst garnering the benefit of a significant reduction in town centre office footprint and a reduction in travel time for
staff through the facilitation of greater home working.

A further commitment to working with partners to promote West Oxfordshire as a visitor attraction (whilst protecting its essential character) is made in the
Council Plan and the pandemic has placed a new emphasis on the visitor economy as tourism patterns have changed with a drop in international visitors to
the District (and the wider Cotswolds) against a backdrop of greater domestic tourism demand.

A grant of £90k was secured from the Discover England Fund which will contribute to the roll out of the Uncover the Cotswolds project, increasing
exposure of new/little known experiences to a wider market. Engagement with local tourism businesses provided an overview of some of the challenges
faced by the visitor economy in the wake of the pandemic and this continues to inform the Council’s approach to supporting the visitor economy to recover
and renew post-Covid. Given the significant contribution the visitor economy makes to West Oxfordshire it is evident that there is a particularly acute need
for support.

Early focus has been on improving the online capabilities of local tourism businesses, including to become bookable online (e.g. via Visit England’s Tourism
Exchange Great Britain platform).A partnership initiative ‘The Real Cotswolds’ project has been launched (with Wake up to Woodstock for Woodstock and
with the Witney Chamber of Trade for Witney) to enhance destination marketing. This project will continue to develop digital town guides for Burford,
Chipping Norton,Witney and Woodstock.A suite of free training modules for local tourism businesses has also been commissioned.

What’s on the Horizon?

e Roll out of scheme ‘Move Together’ from May 2021 which has been externally funded to improve mobility amongst the most frail and lonely residents

e West Oxfordshire Citizens Advice Bureau will continue to support the community through a dedicated funded role to provide guidance on benefits,
welfare and debt advice.

e Roll out of Visit England funded promotion of businesses that are fully bookable online from May 2021.


https://www.cotswolds.com/partnership/uncover-the-cotswolds
https://www.cotswolds.com/plan-your-trip/towns-and-villages/the-real-cotswolds
https://www.cotswolds.com/partnership/training

¢ obed

Meeting the Housing Needs of our Changing Population: Securing the provision of market and affordable housing
of a high quality for a wide range of householders making their home in West Oxfordshire

Recovery Theme: Communities

A significant step towards achieving this priority has been accomplished with the publication of the draft Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning
Document (AH SPD) which has been subject to two rounds of consultation to address stakeholder representations. Once adopted, the detailed guidance it
provides will steer the successful implementation of Local Plan Policy H3 on the delivery of affordable housing. At this stage the AH SPD will become a
material planning consideration.

Local Plan Policy H3 requires the provision of on-site affordable housing as part of larger market housing schemes of || or more units varying by location
from 35% - 50%. In addition, smaller market housing schemes of 6-10 units within the Cotswolds AONB are required to make a financial contribution
towards the provision of affordable housing within the District. The policy also addresses the issue of housing mix and the provision of affordable housing in
rural areas including through rural exception sites. By providing additional guidance on the implementation of these requirements, the AH SPD seeks to set
out a range of options and requirements to secure delivery of successful affordable housing schemes across the District that meet the housing needs of our
changing population.

Options for delivery are presented including criteria for identifying qualifying sites; the size of affordable homes needed, the preferred tenure mix, rural
exception sites and self and custom build schemes. Delivery is addressed through requirements relating to design criteria, accessibility and adaptability, space
standards, zero carbon homes and modern methods of construction. Specific delivery mechanisms are articulated including housing options for the Armed
Forces and also Key Workers and Community Led Housing.

Finally, exploration of two new routes to affordable housing in the District are presented:

A) The Blenheim Approach:WWODC is working closely with Blenheim Estate on an innovative model for delivering an increased level of affordable
housing at between 60 — 80% of market rental costs. This model has been successfully implemented in Long Hanborough and will also be offered on their
other sites for development at Woodstock East. It is the intention of Blenheim to retain ownership of the rental properties so they can be held in perpetuity
for local people, especially those within the key worker categories.

B)  Partnerships with Legacy Landowners:WODC is also interested in partnering with other legacy landowners to accelerate delivery of affordable
housing in the district and the AH SPD invites those landowners (particularly in smaller rural settlements) who are considering development as part of their
long term legacy planning to engage with them to explore the scope for delivering affordable housing through rural exception sites.

Further to the achievement of the AH SPD, progress towards the delivery of Shared Ownership Affordable Housing in the district has been made. In
partnership with the Oxfordshire Growth Deal and Heylo Housing, WWODC has been able to develop a programme whereby 43 homes will be made


https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/bdqblan0/revised-draft-affordable-housing-spd-february-2021.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/bdqblan0/revised-draft-affordable-housing-spd-february-2021.pdf

vt abed

available as shared ownership rather than them being sold on the open market as originally intended. Heylo Housing are a Registered Provider; who are able
to negotiate bulk acquisition of new homes from developers for use as shared ownership housing.

In 2020-21 374 new affordable homes have been completed in the District, far greater than the Local Plan identified need of 274. It is anticipated that this
target will again be exceeded in 2021-22. In addition to this the Council is exploring a range of housing products for existing and upcoming developments to
broaden the range of Low Cost Home Ownership products available. These include Discount Market Sale, Build to Rent, and Rent to Buy.

The Council is working directly with Blenheim Estates to bring forward strategic sites and rural exception schemes that propose low carbon development
and additional affordable homes. It is also working with other landowning organisations who are seeking to develop and manage their own affordable
housing stock and with specialists and co-housing groups to bring forward self-build co-housing on large strategic development sites.Also in partnership, the
Council is collaborating with Parish Council’s and Registered Providers to bring forward smaller schemes to help meet local need for affordable housing.

Within the West Oxfordshire Local Plan there is a requirement for sites of over 100 homes to provide suitable self-build/custom finish plots. Self-build is
also promoted through a Council maintained self-build register which can be accessed on the Council website and additional guidance is provided in the
aforementioned Affordable Housing SPD.

In terms of fulfilling the Council’s obligations to meet the accommodation needs of Gypsy and Travelling Communities, two planning consents have been
given to intensify the use of two existing sites in Minster Lovell and Bampton to provide more accommodation for this group.

What’s on the Horizon?

o Adoption of Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document late Summer 2021.

e The Council is working with Registered Providers to assist and also partner with a Registered Provider Housing Company planning for strategic sites
that will provide 100% affordable schemes.Year 2021/22 will see delivery of additional affordable homes that have been funded using Oxfordshire
Growth Deal funds (facilitated by WODC), and in some cases with S106 receipts. These will include Extra Care and General Needs apartments and
houses for affordable rental and shared ownership at: Rockhill, Chipping Norton; Lavender Place, Bampton and additional shared ownership properties
in Witney and Minster Lovell. Delivery will continue on further schemes beyond 2022.

e WODC has commissioned a study into the potential for a ‘living rent’ from Oxford Brookes University that will identify how it may benefit certain
groups of people in need of affordable housing. Once these findings are known, Officers will work on incorporating these into guidance/policy.


https://www.lexisnexis.co.uk/legal/guidance/the-definition-of-affordable-housing-set-out-in-annex-2-of-the-national-planning-policy-framework
https://hoa.org.uk/advice/guides-for-homeowners/i-am-buying/build-to-rent/
https://www.yourhousinggroup.co.uk/find-a-home/homes-to-rent/rent-to-buy/
http://www.pas.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/planning-self-and-custom--edc.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/housing/self-build-housing/

Gy obed

Modern Council Services and Sustainable Finance: Delivering excellent modern services whilst ensuring the
financial sustainability of the Council

Recovery Theme: Modern Council Services and Sustainable Finance

Achievement of the aforementioned 5 Council Plan priorities are dependent on the Council having a sound financial footing. It has been the case for some
time that local government finances have been constrained in part by local government finance grant cuts and increasing service costs pressures. These have
been further amplified by the pandemic (greater draw on Council services, extraordinary service costs and lost revenue streams) and this, coupled with
future limitations to incentive based funding such as the New Homes Bonus, present the Council with a challenge to match delivery ambitions to our
revenue stream.

An Investment Strategy was approved by Full Council in October 2020 which sets out a range of tools and activities to help improve the general approach
to matching income and expenditure across the activities of the District Council. The strategy starts from a premise that there is a significant funding gap
that needs to be closed and capital investment is a major tool available to the Council to achieve this so long as it covers the revenue implications of that
investment and makes an appropriate return. Capital Investment provides a route to delivering the ambitious programme of the Council set out in the
Council Plan.

The priorities for the Investment Strategy were identified as:-

e Climate Change and Green Infrastructure
e Economic Development and Jobs Infrastructure
e Housing Infrastructure

The strategy identified the need to provide a revenue return in the order of 3.5% above borrowing costs in the long term to ensure that the investments
were financially sustainable and helped bridge an emerging forecast budget gap.An amount of £15m was set aside in the 2021/22 capital programme to
support the strategy.

To date two acquisitions have been completed in addition to an item that was approved prior to the investment programme.

e A property to provide emergency housing accommodation was purchased with a net cost to the Capital Programme of just over £1m.This will not
only deliver 16 units of emergency accommodation but will also deliver a return on capital of in excess of 12%.

® An opportunity arose to marry the freehold of land the Council already owns with some industrial units on land in a growth area of the district. This
provided a strategic opportunity for the Council to increase its control over the site which will provide future redevelopment opportunities. The
investment of circa £2.5m will not only secure the site and support jobs in the district but also deliver a return on capital of approaching 10%.

e The Council invested £2m in a solar project within the district which delivers both renewable energy and local community benefits. The loan delivers a
return on capital of 3.85% in addition to the climate and community benefits.


https://meetings.westoxon.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20201021/Agenda/11%20Investment%20Strategy%20for%20Recovery%20of%20West%20Oxfordshire.pdf

ot abed

Taken together these three items deliver strongly on each of the Council priorities and also contribute almost £375,000 to closing the revenue funding gap
set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Turning to modernisation of Council service delivery, provision of digital options for businesses and residents as a means of offering more choice for
accessing services have been progressed in this first year of the Council Plan. Customers can access Council services more conveniently via a range of online
self-serve tools, whilst still having access to an advisor on the phone or face to face if preferred.

Central to this digitalisation of Council services is the Salesforce platform which has enabled the following:

e Salesforce BOT available 24/7 to answer customer queries or signposts to necessary information. It can transfer the enquiry to Customer Services if
unanswered. 80% of all enquiries have been answered by the BOT without any need for transfer to Customer Services demonstrating efficiency. The
BOT’s performance will be continually monitored and its configuration modified as new services are added to its functionality.

e Salesforce Live Chat capability launched on the Council’s website allowing customers to interact in real time with Customer Services.This was
particularly valuable in supporting the CS team to handle the Covid-19 demand as well as particular events such as the change to the waste contract.

e Support the administration of the Discretionary Business Grants under Covid-19.An online form/flow was built in less than 2 weeks to perform
eligibility checks so we only received valid grant applications. Salesforce was used by both Customer Services and back office staff to process
applications and create necessary payment files for progressing through the General Ledger and our BACS payment systems.

The Business Grants system built in Salesforce will continue to evolve to keep pace with Government changes to grants. Of particular note is the evolution
from single payment functionality to allow multiple payments per application. In total £39,595,446 was paid out in the 2020-21 financial year to local
businesses.

The roll out of Civica system has enabled modernisation of our Revenues and Benefits system.This will help to streamline processes and improve efficiency
by having one annual billing and one benefit uprating process. Additionally, Civica has functionality for customers to be able to self-serve.

What’s on the Horizon?

e Council to take a decision on integrating Salesforce with a new digital VWaste Management System (Yotta) to enable monitoring of missed bin
collections and a means for customer requests for replacement containers. Ubico (waste contractor) is able to via use of tablets in their service trucks
to update progress of rounds and identify any exceptions, e.g. households who have not presented their bins for collection.



b

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE REPORT:
January 2021 - March 2021

T
QO
«Q
Q)
D
~




KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS LIST

Finance and Management O & S Committee

Economic and Social O & S Committee

Environment O & S Committee

Customer satisfaction — face to face

Number of households living in emergency
accommodation for under 28 days

Number of fly tips collected

Customer satisfaction — web

Number of households living in emergency
accommodation for over 28 days

Percentage of fly tips that result in an enforcement
action taking place

Customer satisfaction — telephone

Number of Long Term Empty properties

Percentage of high risk notifications risk assessed within
one working day

Customer satisfaction - email

Percentage of major planning applications determined

Percentage of high risk food premises inspected within
target timescales

Dq:‘ercentage of calls responded to within 20 seconds
2

Percentage of minor planning applications determined

Residual household waste per household (kg)

O 4= ’\RV\ 1

ercentage of telephone calls abandoned by the
customer

Percentage of other planning applications determined

(Cumulative) Percentage of household waste recycled

(Cumulative) Percentage of council tax collected

Percentage of planning appeals allowed

(Cumulative) Percentage of household waste by waste
streams

(Cumulative) Percentage of business rates collected

(Cumulative) Number of affordable homes delivered

Number of missed bin per 100,000 scheduled
collections

(Cumulative) Average number of days taken to process
new housing benefit claims

Percentage of land charge searches dispatched within 10
working days

Total hours spent undertaking on and off-street parking
enforcement visits

(Cumulative) Average number of days taken to process
housing benefit change of circumstances

Number of visits to leisure centres

(Cumulative) Percentage of housing benefit overpayment
due to LA error/Admin delay

Number of gym memberships




61 abed

A note on performance benchmarking

Benchmarking can be a useful tool for driving improvement; by comparing our performance with other similar organisations, we can start a discussion about
what good performance might look like,and why there might be variations, as well as learning from other organisations about how they operate (process
benchmarking).

A selection of publicly available benchmarking data has been included in the 2020-21 Q4 performance report on a trial basis. Two comparator groups that are
commonly used to benchmark Councils’ performance are: all shire district councils and CIPFA Nearest Neighbours (NN).The CIPFA NN Model is based on
family groups; it adopts a scientific approach to measuring the similarity between councils taking into account a range of demographic and socio-economic
characteristics. The standard model provides the |5 nearest neighbours to each council. In contrast, the all shire districts comparator group is a much larger
dataset of 192 councils, and there will inevitably be a much greater variation between the councils in this group.

When we embark on performance benchmarking, it is important to understand that we are often looking at one aspect of performance i.e. the level of
performance achieved. Although the CIPFA NN Model groups councils on the basis of similarity, these factors are external and based on ‘place’. The model
does not take into account how services are resourced or compare in terms of quality or level of service delivered, for example, how satisfied are residents
and customers? Furthermore, each council is unique with its own vision, aim and priorities, and services operate within this context.

Therefore, the benchmarking data provided in this report should be viewed as a ‘guide’ and as a starting point for discussion. It is important to understand
performance within context, and there will be a variety of internal factors that determine performance including costs, workloads and quality.

Note
The data has been extracted from LG Inform, a benchmarking tool, which contains a range of routinely published data. It should be noted that:

e the extracted data may differ from the Council’s own data;
e the median and top (best 25%) quartile lines are based on annual outturns but applied to the quarterly data;;
e 2020/21 benchmarks are not yet available, so the previous year’s benchmarks have been used




KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS

At a glance...

Summary of Performance

17.4%

43.5%

39.1%

Indicator Status

0g abed

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Many services have been impacted by Covid-19, and have had to either cease or find
new ways of working during multiple national lockdowns. Other services have
experienced higher workloads to meet customer/client demand or are supporting
communities and businesses which are affected by the pandemic.

Some services continue to be significantly impacted by Covid-19 such as business rates
collection, leisure facilities and food safety inspections. In addition, the implementation
of a new revenues and benefits system combined with year end activities, has placed
additional burdens on the service.

To comply with Covid-19 guidance and restrictions, the majority of staff are still working
from home.Although many services have been able to deliver services ‘virtually’ and
customer satisfaction for services delivered by phone remains high, other services such
as Planning have found the process less efficient

Customer satisfaction - phones
Customer satisfaction - F2F
Customer satisfaction - website
Customer satisfaction - email no target set
% calls responded within 20 secs

% abandoned calls

CT collection rate

NNDR collection rate

Average days to process HB new claims

Average days to process HB change events

% HB overpayment

Households in Emergency Accomodation under 28 days
Households in Emergency Accommodation over 28 days
% major applications determined within time

% minor applications determined within time

% others applications determined within time

% planning appeals allowed

Affordable homes delivered

% land charge searches dispatched within time

% high risk notifications assessed within time

% high risk food premises inspected within time
Residual waste per household (kg)

% overall recycling rate

Missed bins per 100,000

Leisure visits no target set

Gym memberships

no target set

Parking enforcement hours




CUSTOMER SERVICE

Customer satisfaction

Face to face - no surveys due to Covid19
Website - 148 respondents

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

Phone - 1023 respondents

Email - 266 respondents

Dissatisfied

percentage

What’s the trend?
Customer satisfaction - phone
-U Customer satisfaction - face to face
100
I}
Q ~— - —
% 95 % 'yi I
[}
8’ \ g) o
o1g DN 5
¢ g e
g 85 =3
80 80
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21

West

20/21

== Cotswold == Forest == Target == Cotswold == Forest West == Target

20/21 20/21

Dissatisfied

Satisfied

Customer satisfaction - website

Customer satisfaction - email

Satisfied

100 100

e
s 75 a——
° -
s /\—,
50 £ 50
@
o
25 @
(=%
= 25
p——  —
0 .
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q4 20/21
== Cotswold == Forest West == Target == Cotswold == Forest West

OBSERVATION

feedback is planned.

Satisfaction ratings for services delivered by phone continue to be high.

The nation emerged from the third lockdown on the 29 March 2021 in phased stages. Although Woodgreen and the Town Centre shop re-opened to customers from |2
April 2021, foorfall is currently low. Satisfaction surveys for services delivered by phone, website and email continue to be conducted,

Satisfaction for services delivered by the Council's website has shown improvements this quarter. Projects to review web content and improve the customer experience are
in progress. However, the number of responses to the website survey, although up on the previous quarter at 345 (from 56) remains an extremely small proportion of the
594,893 visitors despite the process for rating the website and leaving feedback being simple. It is likely that the results from the survey are unrepresentative. An analysis of
the survey data was completed to understand the issues and to determine whether satisfaction is with service provision or the website. A significant proportion of the
qualitative feedback was found to be about service provision or were categorised as user errer e.g. mistyping a posteode rather than eomments about content or website
functienality improvements, Therefore, this indicator has been set to ‘Amber’, A new framework to measure the effectiveness of the Council's website and gather customer




Telephone calls - response and abandonment

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

% of phone calls answered within 20 seconds

. OBSERVATION

The service is currently reviewing its indicators and targets in preparation

5 N\ far 202122 to ensure that they are appropriate to customers’ needs; 5o
for example, ensuring that satisfaction for our services remains high while
\/ also taking into account the benefics af channel shift and providing maore

options for accessing our services,

50

Percentage

Warkloads are generally higher in Q4 due to normal annual billing
25 pracesses, However, perfarmance has reduced significantly due to scaff

turnover during the quarter and higher call volumes refited to Covid- 19,
0 for example, responding to Covid=19 business grants calls and supporting

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 lenl '
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 'H"S o tht‘ clll'llf.'i"'f EKtI‘EI‘I'IEI}"VIJII'ICI'HHE. a3 wt" a5 Hklﬂg gﬂl"‘dtﬂ waste
payments and queries.

2S abed

I addition, the dme spent on 1 call increased as staff supported calls from
revenues and benefit customers which involved the manual collection of
infarmation while the new system was being implemented. The call abandon

% of phone calls abandoned . . . L
rate increased due to the service managing call volumes by revising call
15

waiting messages which provided advice /sign post customers to alternative
ways to complete their transactions. Advisors are working to reduce the

backlog of voicemails and emails that have built up; and recruitment to
1 \ Vacant posts has just taken place.

\.’-\‘_/\\ Mate:a high abandon rate is not a sign of poor performance as customers

may abandon their calls for many reasons including completing their

/\'/ \/ \ transactions on the Council’s website

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

Percentage




Revenues and Benefit

(Cumulative) Percentage of council tax collected & the difference between the percentage of council tax collected and the target

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :I West Oxfordshire

100 8.0
6.0
75
4.0
(] (V]
g 50 g8 20
2 5
g o
Ue & o |
QO
«Q 25
® -2.0
ol
w
0 -4.0
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 02 Q3 04 01 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERVATION:

At the end of Q4, the collection rate was just over one percentage point lower than previous years.

Due to the impact of Covid=19,all recovery action was paused initally following government guidance and Member decision, and the service worked with customers (o
re-align payment instalments. The service had the go-ahead at the end of September 2020 to re-commence recovery actions such as reminders and final payment letters. Some
householders income will have been impacted by job loss and furlough; the service is contacting custemers by phone and emall, a5 well as including a letter with reminders to
encourage customers to contact the Council if they are experiencing problems with council tax payments. Furthermore, those residents in receipt of council tax support
received an additlenal payment to thelr accounts from the governments Covid- 19 Councll Tax hardship fund.

Currently, the Magjstrates Courts are not holding any liability order hearings which will mean the Council is unable to enforce any debts incurred in 2020/21.The debt will be
rolled over into the new financial year, and added to residents’ new payment schedules; and recovery action will continue




(Cumulative) Percentage of business rates collected & the difference between the percentage of business rates collected and the target

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

10.0
100
5.0
75
0.0 -
g
& @
g 50 g
c
S S 50
[ o
o “
Q
25
«Q 10,0
(0]
o1
D ) -15.0
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERYATION:

The collection rate at the end of Q4 was around six percentage points lower than previous year; Covid-19 is having a major impact on business rate collection figures throughout
the country.

Due wo the impact of Covid-19 restrictions and three natienal leckdewns, many businesses had to close for several menths of the year or operate under restrictions. Fellewing an
initial pause in undertaking recovery action, the service is sending out reminders, phoning and emailing businesses to encourage them to contact the Council so that we can
support them via manageable repayment plans. Currently, the Magistrates Courts are not holding any liabilicy order hearings which will mean the Council is unable to enforce any
debts incurred in 2020021, so the debt will ke rolled forward into the next financial year, and added to the new payment instalments for 202 1-22.

Gavernment has gone seme way in helping certain businesses with |00% business rate relief, but there are sull these businesses which have seen an impact on their cut tirn which
have net received any assistance and are therefore struggling financially. A further tranche of business grants became available te cover the secend and third lockdewns, and the
Council is continuing to distribute a number of grants that are available to eligible businesses,

Mere: eentral gavernment funding to eaver business rates relief is not ineluded in the autturn




Benchmarks against all Shire Districts and Cipfa nearest neighbours for council tax collection rates and business rates collection rates

Percentage of council tax collected

o
b

«Q
D
o1
Pe

percentage

percentage

100

99

98

97

96

95

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

B Cotswold [ Forest West == Shire District Median
== 3rd quartile

== st quartile

rcentage of business rates collected

100
99 — _—
98
97
96
95
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
B cCotswold [ Forest West == Shire District Median == 1st quartile

== 3rd quartile

Percentage

Percentage

100

©O
=]

(]
3

0
o

(e}

100

©
o

©
il

©
o

aé"
& .§‘z
KD \N
Q\\S

o°

5|II
99||||
95

West's Cipfa nearest neighbours (2019/20)

&
0"

& e @ O &
& & & & & & & ¥ &
< &€ & £ & .\b ﬁ\ & RS & K\
50 © & @ e} o S - g) a\ &
& ¢ Q}o‘{\ a\\x@ & F F & & & & & 9
> \%ee 00\ N
TS

West's Cipfa nearest neighbours (2019/20)

\e:*

\é\ & @ (}\{\e m”\ &
@ R 5 @ &S \\95\
\ﬂ" © é"\b S ‘b@é\ &8
¥ &
>
<&



(Cumulative) Average number of days taken to process new housing benefit claims

- Target

40
30
£ —
[«5]
Q £
® 2
‘éq 20
10

- Cotswold

- Forest of Dean

VS \

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 1 Q2 Q3

18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21

Q4
20/21

:l West Oxfordshire

- Shire Districts’ Median

OBSERVATION:

At the end of Q4, processing times have increased significantly due te
the implementation of a new revenues and benefits system on 4
February. Prior to "go live', there was a period of downtime between
switching the old system off and the new system on, which created a
backlog of applications which staff have been working through. During
24, a range of end of year activities are administered including the
benefit uprating and rent increases which require system parameter
changes and testing, which has placed additional burdens en staff.

Furthermare, capacity has been reduced in the service as staff have
taken time out to train Custemer Services Advisors, while other officers
have supported ‘Track and Trace’. However, there are benefits of the
new system including the ability to make enline applications, and once
the open portal is implemented later in the year, the back office system
will be astsmatically updated.

Although performance was off target due to many external factors,
assurances can be given that not one claimant suffered any financial loss
or experienced any threat to their new or ongoing tenancy. If there was
any threat to the claimant because of delays in administering their claim,
the Council would have provided an emergency payment.

To manage workloads, the service has accessed support on demand
from an external source.

Mote: due to the significant reduction (over 70%) in new housing
benefit claims since the implementation of Universal Credit in
Movember 2017 inWest Oxfordshire District, this indicator has
become obsolete, It is proposed that a new indicator to measure
Council Tax Suppert processing times is introduced as the majority of
Universal Credit claims will have an associated CTS claim




(Cumulative) Average number of days taken to process housing benefit change of circumstances

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire - Shire Districts’ Median

1 OBSERVATION:

Despite the additional workloads associated with the

10 implementation of a new revenues and benefits system and year end
activities, performance has come in on target at the end of Q4.

8 Some of the annual changes such as rent increases are simple to
process and can be applied in bulle which has helped to reduce the

6 average processing time

Number

/G abed

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21




(Cumulative) Percentage of housing benefit overpayment due to LA error/Admin delay

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean I:l West Oxfordshire

- OBSERVATION:

The service continues to invalve a number of staff in
quality assurance. Due to the high volume of change of

1.00
circumstances, a sampling approach is taken, and areas
which have high error rates such as calculation of
075 earnings, are targeted
(]
g There was a small number of errors relating to high
c
S e \ value overpayments in Q4 of the previous year which
5 0
[a

\ were amended in Q1. We were expecting the spike to

K flatten out aver the course of the year, and to achieve

025 /\/\/v___/—\ the annual target; however, the backlog created by the
implementation of the new revenues and benefits system

resulted in an increase in admin delay.

8G abed

Q1 Q2 @3 Q4 o Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 The bulk processing of some end of year changes in Q4

18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 . .
such as rent increases has helped to bring the outturn

closer to the target




Housing Support

(Snapshot) Number of households living in emergency accommodation for under 28 days & over 28 days

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :I West Oxfordshire

Under 28 days Over 28 days
10 30
8
20
6 =
9] 5]
Q
: )\ :
z 4 Z
LY \ 10
QD
(@] 5 —
(9]
A e _————
© 0 0 e =
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 19/20 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERVATION:

At the beginning of the first lockdown, councils were required to place all clients whe are rough sleeping or at risk of imminent homelessness regardless of priority need who have
approached the Council, into emergency accommaodation, which resulted in a spike in numbers.

The number of househelds living in emergency accommeodation started to decrease as exit plans were created to move households inte mere secure tenancies including privace
rented, housing association, and supported accommedation. In addition, some households and rough sleepers chose to leave emergency accommedation.

In Q4, the number of homelessness presentations started to increase again as the nation entered the third leckdeown, and as a result of the celd weather. The majority of the
households in emergency accommedation over 28 days tend to be single people affected by the pandemic (rather than in priority need) who are difficult to move on due to the
lack of one bedroom accommedation. The Oxfordshire councils are working together to the same standards; and hostels are helping to move people on creating greater fluidicy

and throughput




(Snapshot) Number of Long Term Empty properties

- Cotswold - Forest of Dean

800
700
600

o0 \’

400

Number

09 abed

300
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21

Q2 Q3 Q4
20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERVATION:

Owerall, the number of long term empty properties in
the District is increasing which is likely to be due to a
number of factors.

Initially, there was a pause in house moves which is likely
to have contributed to the increase. In addition, no site
visits to inspect properties were being undertaken by
the LTE officer due to Covid-19.

The LTE post is responsible for monitoring properties
and working with landlords to support them to bring
their properties back into use. This post became vacant
in September but has recently been recruited to. The
new post will concentrate on those properties where
the Council might be able to influence or take action,
rather than on those properties that are being well
maintained.

Cottsway has re-commenced the planned demolition of
housing association properties, but there are still seme
retirement properties that have not sold




Planning and Strategic Housing
(Cumulative) Percentage of major planning applications determined

% of all applications completed within an agreed timeframe

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire - Shire Districts’ Median

% of all application completed within |3 weeks

------------- Cotswold -e-ennm---- Forest of Dean West Oxfordshire

OBSERYATION:

Sarven majer applications ware determined in the quarer; and 40 for the year compand 1o 54 far the

100
/ —_\/\ > same period a pear ago.

The service has reported that the number of applications received aver the summer and then

— throughout the rest of the year has been a record nationally and thar this rend is reflected locally.
75 The Increasing numbers coming through combined with reduced efficency in the planning process as
a resilt af Covid-19 has created & backbeg The deparmire of twe senlor phnners and a plamnes has
placed additional pressure on the team which is already overstretched. Reorumtment is in hard but

performance is slipping, and recruitment of agency staff is under consideration to fill the gaps.

The Planning team has found home worling and the restricticns imposed by Covid- 19 has oreated
Tree addicianal burdans 25 nar all aspacts of this stanungry procass can ba or are bast achieved
..-."""-'.- R L P p electraicily. [n addition. bom working g reduced comeunication between allicers, and therelare
25 . e oo ARLLLY .-;.-.‘ ....... '-v,‘.: *t., - there is less support for officers which is affecting morale. Validating planning applications for accuracy
' hias proved particularly problematic as 2 home based exercise as details of the application have to be
. . cregs checked againgt a number of plans and maps which can be achieved much easer using paper
- . wersians in the office. A rew vilidation process was implemented aver the ChristrasTiew Year at al
0 e ot three partner Coundl sites which should help to improve performance generally, Other tasks that are

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 1 Q2 Q3 Q4 achieved more easdy in the office include redecting and printing documents e.g, site notices,
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 1920 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

Percefwggg 6'9 d

The restrictions impased by Covid- 19 have resulted in additional preparasion dme required for
Mote o |enas mesrings, and sl visis which need o be urwccampanied and pre-arranged, oftan with 3

: i .
The charts for the planning performance measures have been separated to demonstrate Follow up nline meeting or phone call

the number of applications that are completed within the set time frames and the number Some consulbers such a8 the County and the Environment Agency are struggling to meet responis
that are completed as a result of an agreed extension of time. target dates which is also impacting on determination dmes,

Extensicns of times are often a result of consultees requesting changes to the scheme or
because the consultee response is essential but has not been received within the
timetable They are also used where officers are working proactively with applicants to
improve schemes and make developments acceptable




(Cumulative) Percentage of minor planning applications determined

% of all applications completed within agreed timescales

- Target

- Cotswold - Forest of Dean

% of all applications completed within 8 weeks

100
75

T
% 50
25
0

............. Cotswold

.....
-n . .
..........
""""""""""""""""""""""
..........
-------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q@4 Qa1 Q@2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

:l West Oxfordshire

Forest of Dean West Oxfordshire

OBSERVATION:

Eighty-four minor applications were determined in the quarter and 334 for
the year compared to 382 for the previous year.

The challenging work conditions coupled with vacant planning posts and
higher volumes of applications coming through has created a backlog which is
impacting on performance. Planning officers are typically dealing with twice as
many live’ applications than in pre-covid times.

Registration/validation has proved particularly problematic as a home based
exercise; although a new validation process was implemented at all three
partner Council development management services over the Christmas/New
Year period which once embedded should help increase resilience and
performance generally. In addition, a number of improvement projects are
scheduled which the Customer Experience Improvemant Team (CEIT) will
help deliver alongside the planning service. However, with such high
workloads in the Planning service, the current focus for both the CEIT and
the Planning teams is to clear the backlog of applications awaiting validation

- Shire Districts’ Median




(Cumulative) Percentage of other planning applications determined

% of all applications completed within agreed timescales

- Target - Cotswold

% of all applications completed within 8 weeks

- Forest of Dean

------------- Cotswold
100
/\\_’
J\ /——/\/
-5 et
g RECIUS I . .
Q®E 50 i, e,
(Qé -------------------
D
o
w 25
0

1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

:l West Oxfordshire

Forest of Dean

West Oxfordshire

OBSERVATION:

283 other applications were determined in the quarter and 991 for
the year compared to 895 for the previous year.

The challenging work conditions coupled with vacant planning posts
and higher volumes of applications coming through has created a
backlog which is impacting on performance. Planning officers are
typically dealing with twice as many 'live” applications than in
pre-covid times.

Registration/validation has proved particularly problematic as a
home based exercise; although a new validation process was
implemented at all three partner Council development managament
services over the Christmas/Mew Year period which once
embedded should help increase resilience and performance
generally. In addition. a number of improvement projects are
scheduled which the Customer Experience Improvement Team
{CEIT) will help deliver alongside the planning service. However,
with such high workloads in the Planning service, the current focus
for both the CEIT and the Planning teams is to clear the backlog of

applications awaiting validation

- Shire Districts’ Median




Benchmarks against Cipfa nearest neighbours for % of planning application determined within agreed timescales

Major applications determined in time (2019/20) Minor applications determined in time (2019/20)

100 100
90 90
80 80
[ [
g 70 g 70
= c
= [0}
o o
o 60 60
50 50
C @ e P POl & R S~ B 4 PN - 5 & & @ o <\°
I A G I R A L oSS & & & &
AT <& S ORI P o & © S R T Gl L N~
NS o 5 5 & &8 @ & &
& & 3 & % >
& o @ < @ By 7
2 RG & A &
-U & o
Other applications determined in time (2019/20)
100

Percentage
~ [«+] o) w
o o (3] o

q?’é(\\‘ © ‘\eﬁ\e} @0\6 Aé\\?\ A'D\\é Qe\@ %\@\P Qp@?’ ‘\07\’(-e e &§§ 0';0 %(\&0 Qe‘é ® 19\ s bh

R SPCE & o ¢ &
Ca 5 o8 S & «
(éb" R 6°§¢




(Cumulative) Percentage of planning appeals allowed

- Target

- Cotswold

- Forest of Dean

50
40
30
U g
D 5
Q g
D 5 20
o
(@)]
ol
10
0

Q1 Q2 Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

I:l West Oxfordshire

OBSERVYATION:

Mone of the fifteen planning appeals determined in Q4
were allowed.

Duwring 2020-21, three out of 32 appeals were allowed




(Cumulative) Number of affordable homes delivered

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

500 OBSERVATION:

Seventy-four affordable homes reached practical completion
in Q4 for rent (53) and low cost home ownership (21), and
a total of 374 for the year. | |6 affordable homes were
delivered by Cottsway, 123 by Sage,and 51 by Aster.The
300 remaining units were delivered by Sovereign, Clarion and
Blenheim (10 homes at Long Hanborough). Additionally,
seven discount market sales have been delivered in Witney.

400

Number

200

Clarion and Greensquare report that their Q4 completions

99 abed

100 for sites in Minster Lovell and Burford are lower than
expected due to issues with material supply and staffing

related to Covid-19 and a general labour shortage. These

0 homes are now likely to be completed in the first six
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 menths of 2021/22




Percentage of land charge searches dispatched within 10 working days

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

e e
OBSERVATION:

The service processed 376 official land charge
80 searches; 375 searches were dispatched within 10
working days.

The number of land charge searches received in
2020-21 was 26% higher than the previous year, with
60 higher volumes particularly over the last nine
months. The increase is most likely due to the 'stamp

Percentage

19 abed

duty holiday' and Brexit.

The service has maintained a high level of service

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 delivery; however, with the increase in numbers
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 coupled with the loss of staff, performance is likely

to fall

40

20



Leisure

Number of visits to leisure centres & (Snapshot) Number of gym memberships

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

Number of leisure visits Number of gym memberships
250 6000
200 \/\/ 5000
4000
150
=) f—
(=]
e E 3000
%]
TE 100 3
QJE 2000
«Q
D
50
@)) 1000
(¢6] /
0 0
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERVATION:
During the 2020121, there have been three national lockdewns; March to June 2020, November 2020, and January te March 2021 which resulted in the closure of
the Council’s leisure facilities.

The Government set out the roadmap for 2021 for emerging out of the third lockdown which allowed leisure centres to re-open from 29 March (for outdoor
activities with limited numbers and social distancing), this was followed by the return of indoor swimming and gym sessions from |2 April 2021. The current
forecast is for a full return of all activities with no social restrictions from 21 June.

During 2020/21, the Council has given financial support packages to leisure operators to ease cash flow issues. Some grant funding has also been available from the
government to cover Councl losses through waiving management fees. A further tranche of funding was made available through Sport England that was directly
applied to covering costs that the leisure operators were experiencing in lockdown, and to support re-opening.

Mote: Gym memberships were frozen during the first and third lockdowns., No targets were set for 2020-21

21




Environmental and Regulatory

Number of fly tips collected

- Cotswold - Forest of Dean

69 abed

Number

500

400

300

200

100

OBSERVATION:

Due to Covid-19, increases in fly tips have been
reported nationally which appears to be reflected locally
in particular over the last quarter. Recycling centres
were closed in the first lockdown but have since been
operating a booking system.

In addition, the fly tipping service was redesigned in Q3
with the introduction of new on-line forms and web
pages making it easier and quicker for residents o
repart fly tips.

A high percentage of the fly tips at the Forest of Dean
are at recycling sites, which are not counted by West
and Cotswold

Q1 Q2 Qs Q4 Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
18/19 18/29 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21

Q2 Qs Q4
20/21 20/21 20/21

22




Percentage of fly tips that result in an enforcement action taking place (defined as a warning letter, fixed penalty notice, simple caution or prosecution)

- Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire

= OBSERVATION:

In Q4, there were 52| notifications of fly tips, up from 301
notifications in the previous guarter. Two enforcement actions
40 were issued, one Fixed Penaley Motice and one warning letter
In addition, officers have been focussing on tackling fly tips at
bring banks, and issuing letters to residents.

30 . . L .
There was an increase in enforcement activity in Q2 following

the implementation of a new enforcement pack allowing
cautions to be issued via the post. However, a short term loss
of experienced resources in the team has resuleed in less
enforcement activity over the last six months. Recruitment to
the vacant post is expected to commence shortly.

20

Percentage

10

0/ abed

In addition, the fly tipping service was re-designed for
Cotswold and West A ‘support service triage’ has been set up
0 T . )!,_‘___/-\"- to free up specialist officer time to deal with the fly tips that

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 o}l Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 can be investigated further. In Q4, 34 fly tips were referred to
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 19/20 19/20 ERS specialists for further investigation, The change in service

will require time to 'bed ', and it is likely that the referral
criteria will need to be broadened to ensure that a sufficient
number of referrals come through for investigation.

Cotswald and West operate a small multidisciplinary team. In
contrast, at Forest of Dean, there is a dedicated Community
Warden team, which has alse implemented a new enforcement
pack

23



Percentage of high risk notifications (including food poisoning outbreaks, anti-social behaviour, contaminated private water supplies, workplace fatalities
or multiple serious injuries) risk assessed within | working day

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean I:l West Oxfordshire

100
OBSERVATION:

. Five notifications in Q4, one oil spill, one report of
flooding, two reports of sewage problems and one
campylobacter case.

g g All norifications were assessed within ane day
It 50
Q =
® ¢
~ 2
=
25
0

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

24



Percentage of high risk food premises inspected within target timescales

- Target - Cotswold

100 \
=

75
T o
QD = 50
Q 8 -
@ ¢
~
N

25

A
0
Q119/20 Q219/20 Q319/20 Q419/20 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q420/21

- Forest of Dean

25

:l West Oxfordshire

OBSERVATION:

This indicator has been set to‘amber' to recognise that the service
has been impacted by Covid-19 restrictions.

During the year, there have been three national leckdowns. During
these periods, remote inspections have been conducted, and site
inspections were undertaken when the Ceovid infection rates had
reduced to a level when it was safe to go out.

Four high risk food inspections were due in Q4. and all four received
a remote inspection.

Following a risk assessment on site visits, and staff consultation, some
staff commenced site inspections at the beginning of March

2021 {with the use of PPE) as the infection rate in Oxfordshire had
reduced significantly. Twe of the four food inspection due have been
completed, although one was completed outside of the 28 day
timescale. The two outstanding inspections relate to care hames
which are excluded from site visits unless deemed necessary.

A backlog of other types of inspections including the inspection of
new food businesses, has built up over the year, and the service is
awaiting further guidance from the F5A in June on how to deal with
the backlog.

All work deemed ‘high prierity’ by the F5A has been undertaken and
a site visit has taken place when required.




Residual household waste per household (kg)

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire - Top Quartile - Shire Districts’ Median

120 West's Cipfa nearest neighbours (2019/20)

600

100

400

Kgs

200

Kgs

80

¢/ abed

60

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

OBSERVYATION:

Due to the impact of Covid-19, all waste and recycling stream tonnages have increased, and reached a peak in October 2020 but appear to be slowly
reducing again.

The amount of residual waste produced during the year increased by over 10% compared to the previous year. All excess recycling and food waste is
being collected at the kerbside if presented correctly.

Both the Council and the Oxfordshire Recycles (OCC partnership work) are using their social media channels to promote waste reduction

Mote: These figures are provisional

26



(Cumulative) Percentage of household waste recycled

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :l West Oxfordshire - Top Quartile - Shire Districts’ Median

70 West's Cipfa nearest neighbours (2019/20)

80

60 J
3 M
o
o [0]
5 g
o c
g -
g 50 ®
«Q
D
~
D
40
Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
17/18 17/18 17/18 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21
OBSERVATION:

Due to the impact of Covid-19, residents are presenting higher amounts of all types of waste,
Dry recycling tonnages for the year were up over 35% on the previous year, garden waste tonnages were up | 5%, and food tonnages, nearly 16%.
The combined recycling rate for the year was 64.2% compared to 61.6% a year ago; the increase was mainly driven by the increase in dry recycling.

The dry recycling rate was 29.6% (up 2.7 percentage points on the previous year), the composting rate was 24.4% and food waste sent for anaerobic digestion was 10.2%. Note
that these figures are provisional.

The service is working closely with UBICO; and all additional recycling and food waste presented correctly at the kerbside by residents is being collected.

Mote that the quarterly recycling targets are profiled to account for seasenal differences. The data is also presented cumulatively which will flatten out some of these differences

27



(Cumulative) Percentage of household waste recycled by waste stream

- Cotswold

G, obed

% of household waste sent for composting
(NB Composting & food combined for Cotswold until 2020/21 Q1)

- Forest of Dean

60

40
13
)
8
g \\ /\/O\
°
5
a N

20

Q118/19 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19 Q119/20 Q219/20 Q319/20 Q419/20 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q420/21
% of household waste sent for anaerobic digestion

60

40
[}
5
3
£
5
©
5
a

20

Q118/19 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19 Q119/20 Q219/20 Q319/20 Q419/20 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q420/21

:l West Oxfordshire

28

Percentage

Percentage

% of household waste sent for recycling & re-use

60
40
\ v
20 —
Q118/19 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19 Q119/20 Q219/20 Q319/20 Q419/20 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q420/21
Combined recycling rate by waste stream
100
75
50
25

Q118/19 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19 Q119/20 Q219/20 Q319/20 Q419/20 Q120/21 Q220/21 Q320/21 Q420/21

W Dryareuse W Food W Composting




Number of missed bin per 100,000 scheduled collections

- Target

9/ abed

Number (000)

300

200

100

- Cotswold

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21

Q3
20/21

Q4
20/21

- Forest of Dean

29

:l West Oxfordshire

OBSERVATION:

Owerall, there have been improvements over the last
year, and performance has generally remained within
the target despite an increase in the number of
misses in the early part of the financial year due to
staff absences related to Covid-19,and the use of
more agency staff who did not possess local
knowledge.

The number of misses also increased in Q4 which
was due to a lack of capacity in customer services
who would usually challenge reports of missed bins
where appropriate, as well as a delay in distributing
waste and recycling containers which can result in
residents leaving out excess waste in sacks for
collection.

The service is working closely with UBICO to
reduce the number of missed bins




Parking

Total hours spent undertaking on and off-street parking enforcement visits

- Target - Cotswold - Forest of Dean :I West Oxfordshire

OBSERVATION:

3000 All enforcement activities were suspended on 23 March
until 15 June 2020 due to Covid-19. Following the first
lockdown, enforcement officers have been taking a light
touch approach to enforcement with the issuing of
warning notices; and staff were redeployed to support

2000 .
COmmunItes.

The nation entered a third lockdown in January 202 1.
Although usage levels in car parks continue to be
relatively low, enforcement officers have been patreclling
the car parks and ensuring that they are safe, while

\_/'_ supporting food deliveries and track and trace when

requested.

Number

/. abed

1000

From April 2021, there will be a return to full

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 enforcement activities

18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 19/20 19/20 19/20 19/20 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21

30




COMPLAINTS - AREWE DOING THE ‘DAY JOB’ REALLY WELL FOR OUR COUNCILS?

Complaints decisions at Stage 2

OBSERVATIOMN:
Upheld A new Custemer Feedback Procedure went live an the |se |uly 2020 The Corporate
25.0% Responsibility team is managing all comphints allowing services to focus on delivery,

The new process has the following stmges:

Srage | Acknowledgemant and Assessment
E:Jgn Fa Inu\:s[ig_:'l:inn

Seage 3: Appeal
Not upheld The complaints shown below only nclude upheld or pardally upheld complaints
75.0%
o
QO
Q Response
@ | Service area Description Outcomel/learning Stage | Decision . P
~ time (days)
o
Revenues & Inaccurate advice on Covid Business Grants On investigation, it was found that some information regarding I Upheld 5
Benefits resulting in the complainant feeling unfairly the case had not been logged on the system resulting in
disadvantaged inaccurate advice being given.An apology was offered, and the
Grant Assessment Team processed the application as a matter of
urgency

31



Page 79




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
I5 July 2021

Report Number

Agenda Item No. 6

Subject

Committee Work Programme 2021/2022

Woards affected

All

Accountable member

Clir Alaa Al-Yousuf, Chairman Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Email: alaa.alyousuf@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Amy Bridgewater-Carnall, Senior Strategic Support Officer
Tel: 01993 861522 Email: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose

To provide the Committee with an update on its Work Programme 2021/22.

Annexes

Annex | - Work Programme for 2021/22

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the work programme, provides comment where
needed.

Corporate priorities

To enable the Committee to review its Work Programme and support the
Council’s priorities to protect the environment whilst supporting the local
economy, to meet the current and future needs of residents and to provide
efficient and value for money services, whilst delivering quality front line
services.

Key Decision No
Exempt No
Consultees/ None

Consultation

Page 81



mailto:alaa.alyousuf@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk

2.2.

2.3.

24.
24.1

242

243

3.1.

4.1.

BACKGROUND

At the May meeting the Committee gave consideration to the development of its
Work Programme for the year having regard to the changes to the approach to
scrutiny work adopted by Council on 22 October 2008.

MAIN POINTS

Members are asked to consider the work programme, along with the Cabinet work
programme, and decide if there are any items that they wish to scrutinise in
particular.

Once considered, the Committee can decide whether to submit formal comments
or recommendations to the Cabinet as they see fit.

In addition to the items contained in the Work Programme there will still be the
opportunity to bring forward one-off reports and papers on particular issues of
interest to the Committee but it will also be necessary to maintain a general
overview of the ways in which external agencies are responding to community
concerns. The inclusion of a standing agenda item for Members’ questions also
provides the opportunity to raise relevant issues.

Updates to the work programme include:

Riparian ownership

Officers have advised that Rachel Crookes, Biodiversity and Countryside Land
Management Officer will be including the current watercourse management in the
Baseline Land Management Plans, to include enhancement recommendations in the
next stage of the plan process.

Rachel is consulting with Laurence King as the plans develop in case any of the
enhancement proposals affect flooding and drainage dynamics. Work on the Land
Management Plan has been reported to the CAWG and Informal Cabinet and a
biannual report will be submitted to the next Council meeting.

Officers felt that as the work was in progress, it was too early to report anything
further but ask that any specific concerns or site specific queries are emailed to
jasmine.mcwilliams@publicagroup.uk which could then be incorporated into the
current work.

Local Lead Flood Authority — update

Since the last meeting, Democratic Services have emailed OCC to enquire about an
update on the Section |9 report following the Christmas floods in Witney.
Unfortunately, we have not received an response as yet. We therefore recommend
moving this item to the September meeting.

Environment Agency Representative

Officers have given us a number of email contacts for representatives at the
Environment Agency but at the time of writing the report, we have not yet received
a response.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 82


mailto:jasmine.mcwilliams@publicagroup.uk

5.1.

6.1.

RISK ASSESSMENT
Not applicable.
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

Whilst there may be climate change implications arising from specific items within
the Work Programme, there are none arising directly from this report.

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS

In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, Committee has the power to
investigate any matters it considers relevant to its work area, and to make
recommendations to the Council, the Executive or any other Committee or Sub-
Committee of the Council as it sees fit.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Page 83



Work Progsramme 2021/2022 — Environment O&S

Annex |

I5 July 2021
Title Format Lead Officer / Cabinet Next report / Anticipated | Comments
Member Completion Date
Review of OCC Section 19 relating to | Written Bill Oddy / Councillor MacRae | Move to September 2021? | Representative from the
the Christmas Floods 2020 report Environment Agency to be
invited
Riparian Ownership and flood risk Verbal Bill Oddy / Councillor MacRae | Move to September 2021?
WODC owned land update
o
Q September 202 |
«Q
g Title Format Lead Officer / Cabinet Next report / Anticipated | Comments
B Member Completion Date
Approval of Charges for the Delivery | Cabinet Bill Oddy / Councillor
of Waste & Recycling Containers report MacRae

Regular Reports

Frequency

Next Meeting Date

Update on Carbon Action Plan — Ness Scott and Councillor Harvey (Cabinet
Work Programme number 3)

Every meeting

May 2021
Members

— to induct any new

Flood Prevention, Drainage & Sewerage Infrastructure Issues - Councillor
MacRae / Laurence King

As required




Work Progsramme 2021/2022 — Environment O&S

Annex |

Air Quality Annual report TBC

Suggestions for future workstreams

Gg abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee —
Thursday 15 July 2021

Report Number

Agenda Item No. 7

Subject

Cabinet Work Programme

Woards affected

All

Accountable
members

Michele Mead, Leader of the Council
michele.mead@westoxon.gov.uk

Accountable officer

Keith Butler Head of Democratic Services
Tel: 01993 861521 Email: keith.butler@westoxon.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose To give the Committee the opportunity to comment on the Cabinet Work
Programme published on 22 June 2021.
Annexes Annex | — Cabinet Work Programme published 22 June 2021.

Recommendation

That the Committee decides whether to express a view to Cabinet on
relevant issues in the Work Programme for the period.

Corporate priorities

To maintain and enhance West Oxfordshire as one of the best places to live,
work and visit in Great Britain and to meet the current and future needs of
residents.

Key Decision No
Exempt No
Consultees/ None

Consultation

Page 87



mailto:michele.mead@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:keith.butler@westoxon.gov.uk

2.1.

3.1.

4.1.

5.1.

BACKGROUND

The Cabinet Work Programme is produced on a monthly basis in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and
the Regulations relating to publicity for Cabinet decisions that came into force on

|0 September 2012. The programme sets out the Cabinet’s work programme for
the following three months, as applicable.

The programme published on 22 June, covering the period to September 2021 is
included in the Annex to this report, for comment.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

RISK ASSESSMENT

Not applicable

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS

The Committee may take such action as it considers appropriate within its terms of
reference

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 88



68 abed

Proposed Decision
and (if applicable) reason(s) the matter

is proposed to be considered in
private

Cabinet Work Programme published 22 June 2021

Key
Decision
(Yes/No)

Likely to be
considered in
private

Decision-
maker

Date of
Decision

Documents

Annex |

Approval of proposed standard fees 21 July 2021

for Legal and Estates

Approval of Oxfordshire Plan 2050 for No No Cabinet 21 July 2021 None Will first be considered

consultation purposes by Economic and Social
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Consideration of options for the Yes No Cabinet 21 July 2021 None

future use of the Witney Town Centre

Shop

Consideration of options for the Yes No Cabinet 21 July 2021 None

future of 33A High Street, Burford

(Visitor Information Centre)

Approval of charges for the delivery of No No Cabinet 21 July 2021 None Will first be considered

waste and recycling containers then by Environment

Council Overview and Scrutiny

Committee




06 abed

Proposed Decision Key Likely tobe  Decision-  Date of Documents Notes
and (if applicable) reason(s) the matter | Decision | considered in maker Decision
is proposed to be considered in (Yes/No) | private

private (Yes/No)

6. | Investment property in Poole - Yes Cabinet
surrender and grant of new lease

21 July 2021 None

Proposed to be considered in private
because of the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 of Part | of Schedule [2A
to the Local Government Act 1972 -
"information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular
person".

7. | Finance outturn report 2020/21 and No No Cabinet 21 July 2021 None
recommended additions to the capital then
programme Council

8. | Approval of upgrade to West Yes No Cabinet |5 September Considered by
Oxfordshire's public space CCTV 2021 Economic & Social
provision and monitoring Overview and Scrutiny
arrangements Committee on

|9 November 2020

9. | Adoption of Affordable Housing No No Cabinet |5 September None consultation draft and
Supplementary Planning Document then 2021 consultation responses
Council

10. | Approval of revised draft Developer Yes No Cabinet |5 September None consultation draft and
Contributions Supplementary Planning 2021 consultation responses
Document for consultation




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous meeting
	Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - William Wareing FINAL
	Submissions for Council Meeting on 10 June - Tony Stark FINAL
	Submission for Council Meeting on 10 June - Kay Jerred FINAL

	5 Council Priorities and Service Performance Report 2020-21 - Quarter Four
	Item 5 - Annex A West Council Plan Annual Statement 2020-21 v3
	Item 5 - Annex B West Performance Indicator report 2020-21 Q4 v4

	6 Committee Work Programme 2020/2021
	7 Cabinet Work Programme

